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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWME

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present to you the annual report of the Company and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2024.

As at 31 March 2024, the principal activities of the Group include oil and
liquefied chemical terminal representing the businesses of leasing of oil and
liquefied chemical terminal, together with its storage and logistics facilities
(the "Port and Storage Facilities”), and provision of agency services and
trading of oil and liquefied chemical products in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oil and liquefied chemical terminal

Following all requisite licenses and regulatory approvals for operation have
been obtained, the Port and Storage Facilities located at Dongying Port
Economic Development Zone, Shandong Province, the PRC and operated
by Shandong Shundong Port Services Company Limited (“Shundong
Port”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, has achieved full-
scale operation in May 2018. According to a lease agreement entered in
December 2020, starting from January 2021, the Port and Storage Facilities
were rented to an independent third party (the “Present Operator”). The
annualised rent receivable from the Present Operator (value-added tax
included) was RMB150 million from 1 April 2022 to 19 May 2023. On
18 May 2023, Shundong Port entered into a short-term lease agreement
(the "Short-term Lease Agreement”) with the Present Operator, pursuant
to which Shundong Port agreed to continue to lease the whole Port and
Storage Facilities to the Present Operator up to 31 July 2023 at a monthly
rent of RMB12.5 million.

On 12 July 2023, Shundong Port entered into a new lease agreement (the
“New Lease Agreement”) with the Present Operator whereby Shundong
Port continued to lease the Port and Storage Facilities (with the exception
of the 14 gas tanks (the “Self-operated Gas Tanks”) which are proposed to
be re-possessed and self-operated by the Group) to the Present Operator
for the term commencing from 1 August 2023 (i.e. the date immediately
after the expiry of the Short-term Lease Agreement) and expiring on 31 July
2028.
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Insurance brokerage service

On 12 October 2023, the Group discontinued the Insurance Brokerage
Service upon the completion of disposal of iECO Financial Consulting
Limited (“iECO Financial”).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recorded a revenue from
continuing operations of approximately HK$242 million (2023: HK$367
million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$125 million as
compared to last year. The gross profit from continuing operations for the
year decreased by approximately HK$4 million to approximately HK$158
million (2023: HK$162 million).

The Group recorded a profit from continuing operations of approximately
HK$95 million for the year (2023: HK$127 million), representing a decrease
of approximately HK$32 million. Such decrease was mainly attributable to
the non-recurrence of net gain on the derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities of approximately HK$63 million, which is partially offset by a net
gain on the reversal of impairment loss under expected credit loss model
on trade and other receivables of approximately HK$13 million; an increase
in fair value gain on investment properties of approximately HK$4 million;
a decrease in fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$5 million; and a decrease in finance costs of approximately HK$8
million due to the repayment of certain bank borrowings during the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

PROSPECTS

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage and
logistics facilities business

On 1 August 2023, Shundong Port commenced the operation of leasing of
the Self-operated Gas Tanks to independent third parties and approximately
HK$37 million rental income was generated during the year ended 31
March 2024.

Leveraging on the ample experience of the Group's specialist team, and
barring the unforeseen circumstances, the Company anticipates that the
Port and Storage Facilities will continue to contribute significant income to
the Group whether through leasing or self-operation.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWME

Financial service business

On 17 June 2024, the Company acquired a 28% look-through effective
interest in a leading credit assessment fintech solution providers (the “Opco
Group”) in the PRC, which is principally engaged in the provision of credit
assessment, fund matching and technical services for financial institutions,
for a consideration of RMB200,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The Directors
are of the view that the Acquisition would allow the Group to tap into
the rapidly developing credit assessment fintech solutions market in the
PRC with an established market position. By pre-agreeing with a dividend
policy, the Company can benefit from investment return of the Opco Group
if and when it has accumulated profits and surplus over necessary cash
reserve. The Company has struck a balance between the limiting of risk
associated with new investment, and the grasping of business opportunity
to shift from traditional industries to “new quality productive forces” as
promoted by the top leaders of the PRC and for the long-term sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group is optimistic of the investment environment and will continue
to explore opportunities in expanding our existing business and different
industries in order to drive the Group’s sustainable growth and strengthen
its financial position.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to
our shareholders, business partners, colleagues and my fellow Directors
who have continuously supported the Group.

Cao Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in the leasing of the Port and Storage
Facilities, and provision of agency services and trading of oil and
liquefied chemical products, and insurance brokerage service (which was
discontinued on 12 October 2023).

(i) Revenue

During the year, the Group’s record revenue from continuing
operations was approximately HK$242 million (2023: HK$367
million). The Group’s revenue is mainly contributed from the rental
income of the Port and Storage Facilities of approximately HK$164
million (2023: HK$157 million) and provision of agency services
and trading of oil and liquefied chemical products of approximately
HK$78 million (2023: HK$209 million) in aggregate.

(i) Gross profit

During the year, the Group’s record gross profit from continuing
operations was approximately HK$158 million (2023: HK$162
million). The Board believes that the stable rental income generated
from the leasing of Port and Storage Facilities enables the Group to
maintain the gross profit position.

(iii) Net gain on the derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities

In late 2019, the Group completed its acquisition of Ever Rosy
Ventures Limited (“Ever Rosy”), through which the Group held 28%
effective interest of Tai'an Wanyue Real Estate Company Limited
("Tai'an Wanyue”), which is engaged in a real estate property
project situated at Daiyue District, Tai‘an City, Shandong Province,
the PRC (the “Acquisition”). The Group classified such investment
as equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income upon completion.

After completion, the financial and operational performance of
Tai'an Wanyue was under-performed as compared to the Group’s
expectation, as the property project experienced construction
delay due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. In September
2021, the Group commenced legal action in the High Court of
Hong Kong (the “Litigation”) against (inter alia) the vendor of the
Acquisition (the “Vendor”) to apply for (inter alia) an Order to have
the acquisition agreement set aside and any consideration already
paid to be fully refunded.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DT

(iv)

On 17 June 2022, the Vendor surrendered the promissory notes
in the aggregate face value of RMB110,500,000 to the Group for
cancellation, thereby reducing the consideration of the Acquisition.
Further details of the Litigation and the adjustment of consideration
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17 June 2022.

On 24 June 2022, the Group, the Vendor and Ever Rosy agreed
on the settlement proposal of the Litigation (the “Settlement
Proposal”) on non-admission of liabilities basis and in full and final
settlement of all claims under the proceedings of the Litigation.
Further details of the Settlement Proposal were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 June 2022.

As a results of the implementation of the Settlement Proposal, the
Group derecognised the equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and the promissory notes and
recorded a net gain of approximately HK$63 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a profit for the year from continuing
operations of approximately HK$95 million (2023: HK$127 million),
such decrease was mainly attributable to the non-recurrence of
net gain on the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
of approximately HK$63 million as mentioned above, which is
partially offset by a net gain on the reversal of impairment loss
under expected credit loss model on trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$13 million; an increase in fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately HK$4 million; a decrease in
fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$5
million; and a decrease in finance costs of approximately HK$8
million due to the repayment of certain bank borrowings during the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage and
logistics facilities business

In 2015, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Shundong Port,
which owns two sea area use rights covering an aggregate area available
for land-forming and reclamation construction of approximately 31.59
hectares in Dongying Port, Shandong Province, the PRC and permitting the
construction of reclamation and land-forming for use in sea transportation
and port facilities for a 50-years’ period running from 13 November 2014 to
12 November 2064 and 23 February 2016 to 22 February 2066 respectively.
Shundong Port has completed the construction and commenced leasing
of its Port and Storage Facilities since 2017, with full commercial operation
having been achieved in May 2018. Approximately HK$164 million rental
income was generated during the year.

In June 2020, two independent investors (the “Investors”) entered into
a funding agreement (the “Funding Agreement”) with Shundong Port
pursuant to which the Investors agreed to provide funding of RMB360
million to Shundong Port by way of non-voting, fixed-interest preferred
shares. As at the date of this report, RMB270 million has been drawn down
from the Investors pursuant to the Funding Agreement and the remaining
sum has yet to be drawn down. Since the Funding Agreement involves no
dilution of the Group’s voting right, profit sharing and return of capital in
Shundong Port and the funding provided by the Investors are essentially by
way of debt instrument in nature. Shundong Port remains as a subsidiary
of the Company and its results continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
financial statements.

In June 2022, the Group further acquired RMB 18,958,403 of the registered
capital of Shundong Port, representing 8.50% of the voting right and right
to profit-based variable dividend, at a consideration of RMB86,000,000.
The acquisition was completed in July 2022 and the Group’s equity holding
of Shundong Port has been increased from 46.67% to 55.17%.

Insurance brokerage service

On 12 October 2023, the Group discontinued the Insurance Brokerage
Service upon the completion of disposal of iECO Financial.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBHNWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,165 million (2023: HK$1,999 million), total liabilities of approximately
HK$811 million (2023: HK$826 million), indicating a gearing ratio of 0.37
(2023: 0.41) on the basis of total liabilities over total assets. The current
ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2024 was 3.14 (2023: 1.95) on basis of
current assets over current liabilities.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had aggregate bank and other borrowings
of approximately HK$160 million (2023: HK$186 million). The aggregate
bank deposits and cash in hand of the Group were approximately HK$591
million (2023: HK$83 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2023: Nil).

Capital and other commitments

The Group had capital commitments contracted but not provided for of
approximately HK$9 million as at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$113 million).

Charges on assets

As at 31 March 2024, the entire investment properties of approximately
HK$1,507 million (2023: HK$1,565 million) were pledged for the Group’s
bank borrowings.

Exchange exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK$ and RMB
exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always
been the concern of the Group. The policy of the Group for its operating
entities operates in their corresponding local currencies to minimise
currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its exposure for the time being,
did not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange
rate risks during the reporting period. However, management will monitor
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure if necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employee information

As at 31 March 2024, the Group employed 67 full-time employees (2023:
58). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employees and are reviewed annually in line with industry
practice. The Group also provides provident fund schemes (as the case may
be) to its employees depending on the location of such employees.

Dividends

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
(2023: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage and
logistics facilities business

Since the completion of the acquisition of 51% effective interest in
Shundong Port by the Group in December 2015, the Group had been
proactively promoting the continual construction of the Port and Storage
Facilities. The original design of the Port and Storage Facilities anticipated
four berths for chemical tankers of 10,000 tonnage and two berths for
chemical tankers of 5,000 tonnage. The construction was completed in late
September 2017, and the terminal had commencing partial operation in
late September 2017 and full operation in May 2018.

In December 2020, Shundong Port entered into a lease agreement (the
“2020 Lease Agreement”) with the Present Operator whereby Shundong
Port agreed to lease the Port and Storage Facilities to the Present Operator
with effect from 1 January 2021 until 19 May 2023. The gross annual rent
(including value-added tax) amounted to RMB140 million with effect from
1 January 2021 until 31 March 2022, and increased to RMB150 million
with effect from 1 April 2022 until 19 May 2023. Details was disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2020.

BEREFN WD

BEEHR

RIZB-ME=A=+—B AEEER67E2
BES(ZT=-=F:58%) - AKEZHHBX
ZERERERRMERE - WIREFEPIFFinaT
AEENTRERZ TRbHRAZFRERTAE
EFFE (RIERTE)

iz 2

EEETERENAFEE 2 CARE (ZE==
F o) o

ARBRERRE

RERBLIRTE RER
i3S

BE-_Z—AF+t-AREEERKBIERBL
51% BN AR NEE —HRGESHERE
ORFEEE - BORBEEREZ RE&TES
/79 110,000 M 1t T f A £ M /3 & 5,000 M 1k T
fAN - R=T—+tFNLATHE TRER " ﬁﬁ
WBHER -_ZT—EFNLATARRIEDLE -
RZZE—N\FRAZTEEIE-

YRR

R-ZEBE_FTF+_A ERBBEARELERN
A mHEERR(ZE_=FHEwHH]) -

Bt - IBRBBREEEAE D RFEFRERETIEE
eEN B —F—H—HEZT-_=-FHh
A+hBER - FEHAEE (RELEER) A
A R ¥#140,000,0000 - BE == —F— A —H
EZTF=RA=+—HEH WEEARK
150,000,000t EZZE-=-_FMWA—HEZ-Z
ZEFRATNBEBER - FBERARRHERAES
E_BFE+_A=1THZAMEE -

RREIBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZNEFR

11



12

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBHNWmR DM

Upon the expiry of the 2020 Lease Agreement, the Company expects to
repossess and self-operate at least part of the Port and Storage Facilities.
As affected by the lockdown measures and COVID-19, the recruitment
and training of the Group's own specialist team was delayed in 2022, as
a result of which the Group has not yet obtained all necessary licenses for
the self-operation of part of the Port and Storage Facilities before the expiry
of the 2020 Lease Agreement. To ensure the undisrupted services of the
end customers of the Port and Storage Facilities, Shundong Port entered
into the Short-term Lease Agreement with the Present Operator on 18 May
2023, pursuant to which Shundong Port agreed to continue to lease the
whole Port and Storage Facilities to the Present Operator up to 31 July 2023
at a monthly rent of RMB12.5 million (including value-added tax).

On 12 July 2023, Shundong Port entered into the New Lease Agreement
with the Present Operator whereby Shundong Port continued to lease the
Port and Storage Facilities (with the exception of the Self-operated Gas
Tanks which are proposed to be re-possessed and self-operated by the
Group) to the Present Operator for the term commencing from 1 August
2023 (i.e. the date immediately after the expiry of the Short-term Lease
Agreement) and expiring on 31 July 2028.

On 1 August 2023, Shundong Port commenced the operation of leasing of
the Self-operated Gas Tanks to independent third parties and approximately
HK$37 million rental income was generated during the year ended 31
March 2024.

Leveraging on the ample experience of the Group’s specialist team, and
barring the unforeseen circumstances, the Company anticipates that the
Port and Storage Facilities will continue to contribute significant income to
the Group whether through leasing or self-operation.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial service business

On 17 June 2024, the Company acquired a 28% look-through effective
interest in the Opco Group in the PRC, which is principally engaged in the
provision of credit assessment, fund matching and technical services for
financial institutions, for a consideration of RMB200,000,000. The Directors
are of the view that the Acquisition would allow the Group to tap into
the rapidly developing credit assessment fintech solutions market in the
PRC with an established market position. By pre-agreeing with a dividend
policy, the Company can benefit from investment return of the Opco Group
if and when it has accumulated profits and surplus over necessary cash
reserve. The Company has struck a balance between the limiting of risk
associated with new investment, and the grasping of business opportunity
to shift from traditional industries to “new quality productive forces” as
promoted by the top leaders of the PRC and for the long-term sustainable
development of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Sheng, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018 and as the Chairman of the Board in April 2022. He graduated from
Shandong Academy of Governance in 1999 majoring in Economics and
Management. Mr. Cao has many years of management experience in China
in the industries of vessel and offshore platform engineering and business
consultancy.

Mr. Liu Yong, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company in April 2022. He studied a
correspondence course in Transportation Financial Accounting with Xi'an
Highway University (now known as Chang’an University) in 1994 to 1997.
Mr. Liu has extensive financial and management experiences in government
authorities and privately owned enterprises in the PRC.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 51,
independent non-executive Director in March 2012 and was re-designated
as an executive Director in November 2013. He was also appointed as the
company secretary of the Company from November 2016 to August 2022.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

was appointed as an

Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in the accounting
and auditing fields. Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of
Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (stock code: 1538), which is listed on the
Main Board (“Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). He was an independent non-executive director
of each of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855), which is
listed on the Main Board, from January 2020 to November 2022; SFund
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367), which was listed on the
Main Board, from November 2016 to August 2022; and Century Energy
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132), which is listed on GEM
("GEM") of the Stock Exchange, from March 2020 to August 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lan Yonggiang, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director in December 2014. Mr. Lan was the Chairman of the Board from
March 2018 to April 2022. He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Lanzhou University. Mr. Lan has extensive experience in investment, mergers
and acquisitions as well as in the business of public listing laws. Mr. Lan was
a director of Jinhui Liquor Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603919), which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from October 2012 to October 2020.
Mr. Lan was a director and the chairman of Guangdong Golden Dragon
Development Inc. (stock code: 000712), which is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, from July 2016 to June 2018; an independent director of
Top Score Fashion Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603608), which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May 2015 to May 2018; and a director of
Shenzhen Kangmei Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 835541), which is
quoted on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New
Third Board), from May 2008 to May 2020.

Mr. Shi Jun, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director in April
2022. He studied Chemical Equipment and Machinery and obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Shandong University of Technology (now known
as Shandong University) in 1993. Mr. Shi is an entrepreneur investing in
automobile 4S stores in Dongying City, Shandong Province, the PRC. He
was a member of the Dongying Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017. Mr. Shi is also the vice
president of Dongying Automobile Dealers Association since December
2010.

Mr. Luo Yingnan, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director in April
2023. He obtained a degree of Master of Finance in 2015 and a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration in 2013, both from the University of
Cincinnati, the United States. After his graduation, Mr. Luo worked as a
manager at a fund management company in China. He then worked as a
business manager of the strategic customer department of one of the big-
four state-owned asset management company in China. In 2019, Mr. Luo
joined a sizeable enterprise in China accredited as Top 500 Enterprise in
China in 2022 principally engaged in petrochemical and energy businesses,
during which Mr. Luo acted as a director and was primarily responsible for
overseeing its business in Singapore and top-level corporate management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Qingbin, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in January 2019. He holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Shandong Economics College. Mr. Tang is registered as a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 20 years of experience in the accounting and auditing field in China.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Shandong Molong
Petroleum Machinery Company Limited (stock code: 568), a company listed
on the Main Board. He is also an independent director of Luxin Venture
Capital Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600783), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wang Jinghua, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2011. He graduated from University of Exeter,
the United Kingdom. He holds two Bachelor of Arts degrees with major
in Internet Computing and Economics & Finance and a Master of Science
degree with International Management. From 2009, Mr. Wang acted as
a General Manager Assistant in China Western Holdings Co., Ltd. He has
most experience in the investment program and contract in the urban
construction project.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Nam Shan, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2015. Mr. Fung holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce awarded by the University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Fung
has become a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2010 and a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia since October 2003.

Currently, Mr. Fung is an independent non-executive director of JH
Educational Technology INC. (currently listed on the Main Board (stock
code: 1935)). He is also the company secretary of China Putian Food
Holding Limited, a company listed on the Main Board (stock code: 1699),
and Thelloy Development Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board (stock code: 1546). Mr. Fung was an independent non-executive
director of China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited, which was listed
on GEM (stock code: 8116), during the period from August 2021 to
September 2021. He was the joint company secretary of Future Bright
Mining Holdings Limited (currently listed on the Main Board (stock code:
2212)), during the period from November 2015 to October 2016 and the
company secretary and authorised representative of each of China Ocean
Group Development Limited (currently listed on GEM (stock code: 8047)),
during the period from May 2015 to May 2017, MH Development Limited,
which was listed on the Main Board (stock code: 2662), during the period
from February 2016 to August 2021, China Supply Chain Holdings Limited
(currently listed on the Main Board (stock code: 3708)), during the period
from March 2016 to July 2021, Yues International Holdings Group Limited
(currently listed on the Main Board (stock code: 1529)), during the period
from June 2021 to June 2022, and Seamless Green China (Holdings)
Limited, which was listed on GEM (stock code: 8150), during the period
from May 2015 to April 2024.

Mr. Fung was employed as financial controller and company secretary of
South China Assets Holdings Limited, which was listed on GEM (stock
code: 8155) from February 2011 to April 2013. Mr. Fung worked for
PricewaterhouseCoopers as an audit manager for several years which he
accumulated experience in auditing, accounting and taxation in Hong Kong
and the PRC. He has been one of the marketing committee members of
The Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association and also a member of its charity
walk organising committee since 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CHEABE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and accountability.
The Board considers that sound corporate management and governance
practices are essential to the Company’s healthy growth under all business
environments. Therefore, we continuously review and improve our
corporate governance standards to ensure maximum compliance with the
relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board have applied the principles in the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) by
adopting the code provisions of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board has adopted and complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code (the “Code Provision”) in so far they are
applicable with the exception of the deviation from Code Provision C.1.6 of
the CG Code.

Under Code Provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders.
Mr. Wang Jinghua, the independent non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company held on
29 September 2023 due to his other prior engagement. That having said,
the majority of independent non-executive Directors, including the chairmen
of all the Board committees, were available to respond to questions and
enquiries of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at
general meetings, and any Directors who were absent from the meeting
were able to obtain an understanding of views expressed by Shareholders (if
any) at the meeting from the attending Directors.

CULTURE

The Board believes that a healthy corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A strong
culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable performance
and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The Company is
committed to developing a positive and progressive culture that is built on
its purpose, vision, mission and values. The followings are the key features
of the Company’s culture:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Integrity

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance across all our activities and operations. The
Directors, management and staff are all required to act lawfully, ethically
and responsibly, and the required standards and norms are set out in the
training materials for all new staff and embedded in the Group’s employee
handbook, code of conduct and internal policies, including the anti-fraud
and anti-corruption policy and the whistle-blowing policy of the Group.

Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to workforce
development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and sustainability
is one where people have a feeling of commitment and emotional
engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets the tone for a strong,
productive workforce that attracts, develops, and retains the best talent and
produces the highest quality work. Moreover, the Company’s strategy in
business development and management is to achieve long-term, steady and
sustainable growth, while having due considerations from environment,
social and governance aspects.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and requires
all employees to reinforce their awareness of our corporate culture through
training and other activities. All of our new employees are required
to attend orientation and training programs so that they may better
understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn relevant
laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from
time to time, the Company will invite external experts to provide training
to our management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge and
management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, values and
strategy of the Group are aligned.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries with
all Directors and all of them confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CHEABE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary for
achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial and operating
performance, formulates appropriate policies, and identifies and ensures
best practices of corporate governance. The Board members are fully
committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the
Shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the Group’s goals
and directions with the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily
operations and administration are delegated to the management. It has
given clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management should report back and
obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine members,
including six executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors ("INEDs”). The Board members during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cao Sheng (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Yong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lan Yonggiang

Mr. Shi Jun

Mr. Luo Yingnan (Appointed on 4 April 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Qingbin
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Mr. Fung Nam Shan

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual report are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages 14 to 17
of this annual report. Save as disclosed therein, none of the Directors has
any financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships
with other members of the Board.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
and that they have met the specific independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, re-election and rotation of Directors

All Directors were not appointed for any specific terms except for Mr.
Luo Yingnan who was appointed for an initial term of one year, which is
automatically renewed for successive periods of one year. All Directors are
subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the AGM and at least once
every three years on a rotation basis in accordance with Article 108 of the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting which he retires. Where vacancies arise
at the Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board by
the nomination committee of the Company as more fully explained below
under the section headed “Nomination Policy”.

Board independence

The Board should establish mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms should be
reviewed annually by the Board. During the year, the Board has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms and made the
following observations:

(a) Three out of nine Directors are INEDs, satisfying the requirement of
the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the Board are INEDs;

(b) INEDs are encouraged to join Board committees to ensure
independent views are available at committee levels;

(o) The nomination committee will assess the independence of a
candidate who is nominated to be a new INED before appointment.
The nomination committee will also assess the continued
independence of the long-serving INEDs on an annual basis;

(d) Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable
if there is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may
materially affect his/her independence;

(e) All INEDs are required to submit a written confirmation to the
Company annually to confirm their independence;
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(f) All Directors are encouraged to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at or outside Board and Board committee meetings;

(9) All Directors are aware of their right to seek assistance from the
Company’s management and company secretary and, where
necessary, to seek independent advice from external professional
advisers at the Company’s expense;

(h) All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and
candid manner at or outside Board and Board committee meetings;
and

(i) All Directors are reminded at Board and Board committee

meetings to disclose any material interest in contract, transaction
or arrangement and where such material interest does exist, shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any
Board or committee resolution approving the same.

Directors’ training

In compliance with Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, the Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge, skills and understanding of the Group and its
business or to update their skills and knowledge on the latest development
or changes in the relevant regulations, the Listing Rules and corporate
governance practices. The Company will also update the Directors of
any material changes in the rules and regulations from time to time.
According to the confirmations provided by the Directors, all Directors have
participated in the continuous professional developments during the year.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirements set
out in the CG Code. The Company recognises that Board diversity is an
essential element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background or
professional experience. All Board appointments are based on merits and
considered against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Currently, there is no female Director on the Board. To enhance gender
diversity, the nomination committee will recommend and nominate at least
one female Director to the Board by 31 December 2024. The Board and the
nomination committee will stay vigilant in identifying a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board. The Company constantly implement recruitment
and promotion policies which encourage and attract qualified incumbents
to take up senior managerial and board roles.

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy and is satisfied that the Board Diversity Policy
has been properly implemented and is effective.

Workforce diversity

The gender ratio of male to female in the workforce (including senior
management) for the year is 40:27. Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal
industry has generally been short of female talents due to social and culture
traditions. Against such industry background, the Group will do its best to
strive for the balance of gender diversity in workforce. Under such criterion,
the total gender diversity of the Group is acceptable at present.

Nomination policy

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of directors with a
diversity of skills and experience. The selection and proposed appointment
of the Directors are submitted to the nomination committee of the
Company for consideration prior to Board approval, and the re-election
of Directors is conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria
of assessing a candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient time
and attention to participate in the affairs of the Company including the
attendance of Board meetings and serving on committees, to bring business
experience to the Board and to contribute to the Board diversity. If the
candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his/her independence shall be assessed in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules. The totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall be evaluated in assessing his/
her suitability.
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Attendance of meetings

During the year, the Company held 5 Board meetings, 1 remuneration
committee meeting, 1 nomination committee meeting, 3 audit committee
meetings and 2 general meetings (including 1 AGM held on 29 September
2023 and 1 extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") held on 18 August
2023). The attendance records of the Directors at such meetings are as
follows:

HEEER

FARARABFETEREZTSESE  —RFME
Bggx —ARERZEEERE ZRKEZZE
EEBERMABRAE (BER-_ZE_=F1A
“tHthBERTHN-RARRBEFAERN_T_=
FNATNBBITOH—RBRFERAE ([BEREF
BIRE])) BRERHFEZEEHNCHEEINMT -

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HE/ REREEERRY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board committee committee committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings AGM/EGM
FMZESE REZEE ENEBE RREFAE/
Bzl 23 a3 g% RRBHAE
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Cao Sheng EEEE 5/5 N/ATE A N/AZ i N/AT @ 22
Mr. Liu Yong BT 4/5 NATNER N/ATE A N/AE A 212
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BREBLE 5/5 11 1N NATEH 22
Mr. Lan Yonggiang EKREE 5/5 N/ANEF NATEE NATER 12
Mr. Shi Jun RERAE 5/5 NATEA N/ATE A N/ATE A 212
Mr. Luo Yingnan (Appointed on 4 April 2023) ZE % B4 4 5/5 N/ATE A N/A T3 N/AT i@ 22
H-F—=F
mANAEER)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Tang Qingbin BEREE 5/5 11 17 33 22
Mr. Wang Jinghua FREERE 4/5 11 17 13 12
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BELEE 5/5 1/1 7N 33 22

Every Board member has full and timely access to Board papers and related
materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Insurance

The Company has attached much importance to the risk management
about Directors’ liabilities and has arranged appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and senior management of the Company. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the CG
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director, is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Company and making recommendations to the Board from time to time,
and reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share option schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March
2024, no share option was granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, and no share award scheme was in effect.

The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated under
the relevant code provisions of the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
remuneration committee has been uploaded to the Stock Exchange’s and
the Company’s websites.

Directors’ remuneration policy

A directors’ remuneration policy has been adopted. It aims to set out the
Company'’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to executive Directors
and non-executive Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration structure
that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified Directors
who can manage and lead the Company in achieving its strategic objective
and contribute to the Company’s performance and sustainable growth,
and to provide Directors with a balanced and competitive remuneration.
The remuneration policy is, therefore, aiming at being competitive but
not excessive. To achieve this, remuneration package is determined with
reference to a matrix of factors, including the individual performance,
qualification and experience of Directors concerned and prevailing industry
practice. It will be reviewed and, if necessary, updated from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the CG Code,
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director, is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and management of the Board succession.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated under
the relevant code provisions of the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
nomination committee has been uploaded to the Stock Exchange’s and the
Company's websites.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
suggested terms of reference stated under the relevant code provisions of
the CG Code. The audit committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Tang Qingbin. The audit
committee is responsible for review of the Group’s accounting principles,
practices internal control procedures and financial reporting matters
including the review of the interim and final results of the Group prior to
recommending to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the audit committee has been uploaded to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

Three meetings of the audit committee were held during the year to
review and approve the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the six months ended 30 September 2023, to
make recommendation to the Board on the selection of the auditor of the
Company and to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
holds meetings with representatives of the independent auditor to consider
the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness
of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and retention of
the independent auditor.

During the year, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe") was re-appointed as

the auditor of the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the
next AGM.
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The following table sets forth the types of, and estimated fees for, the
principal audit services and non-audit services provided by Crowe to the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2024:
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Fees paid/payable

B ENER

HK$'000

Services rendered FriR 4 AR 3% FET
Audit services ZE R 1,000
Non-audit services IENZ EBR TS =
Total HEt 1,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities of (i) reviewing risk management
and internal control to the audit committee; and (ii) designing,
implementing and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems to the management. The Group’s internal audit staff is responsible
for analysing and appraising the adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the audit committee, performs annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function. Having performed such review, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in place for the
year ended 31 March 2024 are effective and adequate, and no material
internal control failings, weaknesses or deficiencies have been identified
during the course of the review.

The management shall report to the Board as soon as practicable for any
event which may constitute inside information, and the Board shall decide
to make relevant disclosure in a timely manner, if required.
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Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy

In compliance with Code Provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy setting out guidelines and
the minimum standards of conducts, the applicable laws and regulation,
the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend
against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case
of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group adopts a zero
tolerance policy on any forms of fraud and corruption among all employees
and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group,
and in its business dealing with third parties. The Board will review the anti-
fraud and anti-corruption policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the prevention,
deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.

Whistle-blowing policy

In compliance with Code Provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a whistle-blowing policy providing employees and relevant third
parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and
debtors) with guidance and reporting channels to the designated person. A
separate email account (whistle-blowing@energyintl.com.hk) has been set
up for this purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently
and, in the meantime, all information received from a whistle-blower and
its identity will be kept confidential. The Board will regularly review the
whistle-blowing policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chong Ching Hoi was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company in August 2022. Mr. Chong is a fellow member of each of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed. According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Chong had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

Effective communication

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders. To ensure that the
Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, the Company has established several channels to communicate
with the Shareholders as follows:

(a) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are issued in printed form and are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and on the
website of the Company at website.energyintinv.wisdomir.com;

(b) announcements and press releases are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(@] corporate information is made available on the Company’s website;
and

(d) AGM and EGM provide a forum for the Shareholders to make
comments and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management.

The AGM is supposed to enable the Shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee are
requested to attend the AGM to be available to answer the questions of
the Shareholders. Separate resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM on each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of
the retiring Directors. The shareholders communication policy is available
on the website of the Company. Shareholders may, at any time, direct
questions, request for publicly available information and provide comments
and suggestions to the Directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the Board by
mail to Units 4307-08, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email to info@energyintl.com.hk.

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders communication policy and considered it to be effective.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be convened on the
written requisition of one or more Shareholders holding as at the date of
deposit of the written requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings, such
requisition being in writing and deposited for the attention of the Board or
the company secretary of the Company. The written requisition shall specify
the purpose of requiring the EGM and signed by the requisitionist(s). If
within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene the
EGM, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law,
However, Shareholders may request the Company to convene an EGM
following the procedures under Article 64 of the Articles as set out above.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a retiring
Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office at least
seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.

Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at the AGM, the following documents must be validly
served at the Company’s head office or the registration office within the
period specified in Article 113 of the Articles, namely, (1) his/her notice
of intention to propose a resolution to elect a nominated candidate as a
Director at the AGM; (2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of
the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s
information as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the publication
of his/her personal data.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopts a dividend policy. The Board shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

o current and prospective financial performance of the Company;
. growth and investment opportunities;

. other macro and micro economic factors; and

. other factors/events that the Board may deem as relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Articles.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 53 of this annual
report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions set out
in the notice of the forthcoming AGM will be voted by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year. The latest version of the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company is available at the Company’s website
and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal
together with its storage and logistics facilities and the provision of agency
services and trading of oil and liquefied chemical products, and insurance
brokerage service (which was discontinued on 12 October 2023). Details
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 are set out in
note 42(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” set out on pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 13 respectively of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated Income
Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages
54 to 55 and page 56 respectively.

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024 is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 57 to 58.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect
of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021, years ended 31 March 2022, 2023 and 2024, and the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group as at each of the
reporting dates.
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EEERS

Results 7
Fifteen
Year ended 31 March months ended Year ended
BE=A=1t-HIEE 31 March 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE #HE
—T-—F —T-NEF
=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
—E-ME “T-ZF “E--F FTHR@A EFE
TET AT AT TAL AT
Revenue (continuing and discontinued 125 (HEERE KB A IF
operations) MEETE) 242,245 366,770 520,579 193,148 146,274
Profit from continuing and discontinued fEfE# E& 4 KB4 IF
operations attribute to: BEXBZEN
Owners of the Company N/NGIEZ=DN 51,990 89,308 12,762 6,726 31,310
Non-controlling interests R R 43,247 36,955 29,174 52,133 15,545
95,237 126,263 41,936 58,859 46,855
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests EE BENIFEERES
As at
As at 31 March 31 December
“+=A
R=A=1+—8 =t+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE —E-=fF —E-CE —Eo-F —E-NEF
TERT TET TATL FEL THL
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,516,723 1,572,184 1,983,897 1,832,565 1,779,158
Current assets RYEE 647,945 426,617 365,373 431,568 294,318
Total assets BERE 2,164,668 1,998,801 2,349,270 2,264,133 2,073,476
Current liabilities nEaE 206,320 219,185 500,724 342,254 583,701
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 604,285 606,477 608,678 756,550 463,398
Total liabilities BELSE 810,605 825,662 1,109,402 1,098,804 1,047,099
Net assets BEFE 1,354,063 1,173,139 1,239,868 1,165,329 1,026,377
Non-controlling interests JmR R 336,712 304,025 337,920 300,532 238,743
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties of
the Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION INVOLVING
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

On 28 April 2023, the Company and the Subscriber, namely Cosmic Shine
International Limited (“Cosmic Shine”), a company legally and beneficially
owned as to 50% by Mr. Cao Sheng and 20% by Mr. Liu Yong, who are
the executive Directors, entered into a subscription agreement on 28 April
2023, pursuant to which the Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 360,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the subscription price
of HK$0.416 per share (“Subscription Share”) for a total consideration of
approximately HK$149.8 million in cash; and the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue the Subscription Shares to the Subscriber under
the specific mandate and the whitewash waiver (the “Subscription”).

All conditions of the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion took place on 30 August 2023 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Subscription Agreement. Upon completion, 360,000,000
Subscription Shares were duly allotted and issued by the Company to the
Subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.416 per Subscription Share
under the specific mandate obtained from the independent Shareholders at
the EGM held on 18 August 2023.

Details of the Subscription were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 28 April 2023, 9 May 2023, 16 May 2023, 16 June 2023, 21 June
2023, 14 July 2023, 21 July 2023, 28 July 2023, 18 August 2023 and 30
August 2023 and circular dated 28 July 2023.
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As at 31 March 2024, utilisation of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$146.8 million is as follows:

EEERS

RZZE-_WF=ZA=+—H FISRBEEFEY
146,800,000 7T 2 BN IE AT ¢

Amount Amount
utilised as at unutilised as at
Net proceeds 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
R-ZE_-NF RN-Ts-mE
=A=+—-HzZz =HA=+—-HZ
8RB RE EBAEE ABAEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBTT BEATT
Repayment of the promissory note EEARLEE 5.2 (5.2) =
Repayment of the bank loan EERITER 141.6 (12.0) 129.6
146.8 (17.2) 129.6
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BrEBEER

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
respectively. As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately
HK$689,022,000.

AAHARBEMKRLAAEZBEZEEERFE =
HEZPAEEREEBEE 2 G A RF]
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 99.2% of the Group’s total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 52.5%.

During the year, the purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 96.7% of the Group’s total purchase for the
year and purchase from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 92.4%.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or Shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cao Sheng (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Yong (Chief executive officer)

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lan Yonggiang

Mr. Shi Jun

Mr. Luo Yingnan (Appointed on 4 April 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Qingbin
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Mr. Fung Nam Shan

Pursuant to the Articles, Directors retiring at the upcoming AGM will be
eligible for re-election. Further details of the Directors’ retirement and re-
election will be set out in a circular of the Company dispatched together
with the notice of the AGM.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 17 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Luo Yingnan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of one year from 4 April 2023, subject to further renewal, and
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by the Company or the
Director has not been re-elected as a director of the Company or has been
removed by shareholders of the Company at any of its general meeting or
is disqualified from acting as a director of the Company in accordance with
the Articles.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the year are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against liability
incurred by Directors and officers of the Group is currently in force and was
in force throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had a
significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or were in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:

Long positions

EEREETRAERKAD - HHE
BROoORBSZEBERKXE

RZZE-_ME=A=+—8 ARAESZKETE
THRABRAQRSEEMEEEZE (E&RH
HREEGROIEXVE) 2Bk - BEARMDIES
FHREEREBEES MHEIEOIEXVEET R8D
HBAARNA KRBT KBRBFESF KBS K
Bl2E 352 I ERZIREMIB 2 B ae 8 - 5k
RIE EMRAIMEE CIATE 2 R ESFRIZEBAAR
A MR T2 SR BT

wE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of Directors Capacity Shares held Company

HEATE

2RITRA

EEnE 14 RGO EE BHABE D

Mr. Cao Sheng (“Mr. Cao”) Interest of controlled corporation 575,431,372* 53.25%
BERAE(EERED AR R

Mr. Liu Yong (“Mr. Liu") Interest of controlled corporation 575,431,372* 53.25%
BIERE(RI%EED REEE R

* According to the filings under Disclosure of Interest (the “DI Filings"”) * BERADFANAHDHENE2EFLBAEK

under Part XV of the SFO retrieved by the Company from public records,
215,431,372 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were held by
Giant Crystal Limited (“Giant Crystal”) and 360,000,000 Shares were held
by Cosmic Shine. Giant Crystal is 100% legally and beneficially owned by
Cosmic Shine, which is in turn legally and beneficially owned as to 50% by
Mr. Cao and as to 20% by Mr. Liu, both being executive Directors. Cosmic
Shine and Giant Crystal are regarded as controlled corporations of Mr. Cao
and Mr. Liu and therefore, Mr. Cao and Mr. Liu are deemed to be interested
in 575,431,372 Shares held by Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal. The deemed
interest under Part XV of the SFO of Mr. Cao and Mr. Liu duplicate with each
other completely.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, so far as any Directors are aware based on the
DI Filings, persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long positions
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares of the Company
EARLTE
BBRTRA
REREHE &1 B 12 BB
Giant Crystal Beneficial owner 215,431,372* 19.94%
5 & BEmlEA A
Cosmic Shine Beneficial owner/Interest of controlled corporation 575,431,372* 53.25%
Cosmic Shine Emka AN/ AR
* Based on the DI Filings, Giant Crystal is 100% legally and beneficially owned * BB =B R AR - 46 & 8 Cosmic Shine & 7% &

by Cosmic Shine. Giant Crystal is regarded as controlled corporation of
Cosmic Shine and therefore, Cosmic Shine is deemed to be interested in
215,431,372 Shares held by Giant Crystal. The deemed interest under Part
XV of the SFO of Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal duplicate with each other
completely.

B A 100% # o 55 & 1% 17 4 Cosmic Shine
225 E - A 0 Cosmic Shine ¥ 18 & MR 4E
ST A 2215431372 B P B LS -
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All the interests stated above represent long positions in the Shares. As at
31 March 2024, no short positions were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware up to 31 March
2024, no other person had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
held on 29 September 2023, the Company adopted its current share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards to Directors and employees
of the Group and the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated
companies of the Company (the “Eligible Participants”) and providing the
Eligible Participants with an opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company to align their economic interests with those of the Group
with the view to achieving the principal objectives of: (a) motivating
the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group; and (b) attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining ongoing business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.
A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme can be
founded on pages 23 to 36 of the Company’s circular dated 6 September
2023.

The Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running from 29
September 2023 to 28 September 2033. Under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options to the
Eligible Participants to subscribe for Shares. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) was 108,056,289
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme on 29 September 2023. The maximum entitlement
of each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue, provided that the maximum entitlement for any grantee
being a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director
or their associates shall be capped at 0.1% of the Shares in issue. Any grant
exceeding these individual limits shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval,
with the relevant grantees and their associates abstaining from voting.
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The options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be subject
to a minimum vesting period of 12 months during which unvested options
shall not become vested and exercisable. Any shorter vesting period in
respect of options granted to employee participants must be approved by
the Board and/or the remuneration committee of the Company (for options
granted to the Directors or senior managers) at the Directors’ discretion,
provided that such grantee(s) has been specifically identified by the Board
before granting such approval. The exercise price of the options shall not
be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
relevant option, which must be a business day; (b) an amount equivalent to
the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the relevant option; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant. An offer shall be made to an Eligible Participant in writing
in such form as the Board may from time to time determine requiring
the Eligible Participant to be bound by the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Participant
to whom an offer is made for a period as specified in the letter of offer,
by which the Eligible Participant must accept the offer together with the
making of a non-refundable payment of the consideration for the grant in
favour of the Company.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year
under review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31 March
2024. No share option grant was effectively made and accepted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 29 September 2023, nor has
the Scheme Mandate Limit has ever been refreshed. As at the date of this
report, options to subscribe for 108,056,289 Shares (representing 10% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company) are available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year, save for the Share Option Scheme as previously mentioned,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements, and there
did not subsist any equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
as at 31 March 2024.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no transactions required to be disclosed as
connected or continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Luo Yingnan was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
4 April 2023. Since his date of appointment and up to the date of this
report, Mr. Luo held majority shareholding and directorship in Fuhai Group
New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (B /8% E e RIZ A R A 7)) (“Fuhai
Group”), an enterprise in China which is engaged in petrochemical and
energy businesses, and Fuhai Oil Pte. Ltd. (“Fuhai Singapore”), an enterprise
in Singapore which is also engaged in petrochemical and energy businesses.
In this regard, the Company was notified by Mr. Luo that his role in Fuhai
Group is supervisory in nature and he did not take part in daily operations.
Regarding Fuhai Singapore, as the Company does not operate any business
in Singapore, the Company is of the view that Mr. Luo’s shareholding and
directorship in Fuhai Singapore is unlikely to result in any actual competition
with the Group’s businesses. That having said, the Company has obtained
an undertaking from Mr. Luo, under which he undertook to notify the
Company of potential conflict of interest if it ever arises, and that he will
refer any relevant business opportunity to the Group in priority to any other
party including Fuhai Group or Fuhai Singapore for so long he occupies
directorship in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no other Directors are considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined by the Listing Rules,
other than those businesses of which the Directors have been appointed as
Directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff and
contributes to the community in which we conduct our businesses and
creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices and principles
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 18 to 31 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules
during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the events after the reporting date are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while balancing
the interests of its various stakeholders including customers, suppliers
and employees. Through regular stakeholder engagement via different
channels, the stakeholders are encouraged to give their opinions regarding
the environmental, social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing effective
and mutual beneficial working relationships with its suppliers, and offering
competitive remuneration package with safety working environments to
employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which will be issued in due course.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

There is no major change in Directors’ information since the published date
of the 2023/24 interim report of the Company which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year. The audit
committee of the Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors.

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three
years.

The financial statements for the year were audited by Crowe. Crowe will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Crowe as auditor

of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Cao Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AR TR

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ENERGY INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to
192, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2024, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

BEEEE &H SEMEBAMERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
i RS TSIEET 7R 18E 0948
9/F Leighton Centre,
77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 4(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HEELRSERE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter
due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the significant
assumptions and judgements involved in the valuation.

B REMEZHEBRNREREZSIIE - AN IHEEIESN
FERRKMAEES R ERBRR KL AE -

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group's investment properties amounted to HK$1,507,397,000 as at 31
March 2024. Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$17,038,000 was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year.

MG S M MAM 20 E RZE_WFE=A=+—8" &
SEMKREWE/1,507,397,0008 T - REWERTEES 2 fm
17,038,000/8 LA A F ERFa AR NER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNAEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the carrying values of the
investment properties included:

B EREMERAECEZEEZEMIEF B
7=

- Reviewing the valuation report from
the Valuer and holding discussion with
management and the Valuer to understand
the valuation basis, methodology used and
underlying assumptions applied;

- FHAEM 2 AERS T EETEE RGE
BETTA R AT BMEREE PRARASE
N PRER 2 MR
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Key audit matter

HRERER

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties was determined by
adopting the valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs,
assumptions of market conditions and judgements. The Group also worked
closely with the independent qualified valuers (the “Valuer”) to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques.
EREREMENATEDRABAAEARNTAIBER ABIRNHERIM -
MRARZEHGEE - EXETEBLABRMEE ([HEM]) B
B LARIE RET S @ A ERM -

B AR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNNEERRERER

- Evaluating management’s process in respect

of reviewing the valuation performed by the
Valuer;

- HEEIE RN RAEMET ZAE R
|2

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the Valuer;
- A HERCER BN REBME

- Obtaining the underlying data used by
the Valuer and assessing whether they are

appropriate;
- S ERD AT A 2 4B R B I AP 2 S 8
BEAEA

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the
valuation model; and

- BEMEBRNER EOERE R

- Performing market research and analysis
to assess whether the changes in fair value
of investment properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and consistent
with market trends to our knowledge.

- ETTISHR RO - e G ERE &
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Fair value measurement of preferred shares
classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 4(m) to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HEELEA

Shandong Shundong Port Services Company Limited (“Shundong Port”), an
indirect-owned subsidiary of the Company, had issued a series of preferred
shares to two independent third parties. In accordance with HKFRS 9, they
are accounted for as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") as at 31 March 2024.
ERFIHEHANNBRARILRIEREBERLF ([EREHK]) Eﬁﬂ
ﬁﬁ% BWUYE=FET—RINBER - RIBEF B HREERE IR -

ZECIME=ZA=+-BRRATFESAES (BT ESAER J)
ZE\M‘%EE)\EE

As of 31 March 2024, the fair values of the preferred shares are
HK$379,015,000. Loss on changes in fair value of the preferred shares of
HK$20,780,000 was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year

ZE_ME=ZA=+—H EBER2QFER379,015000% T ° &
G‘EH“’“JZT &%) 2 B51820,780,000 B TTA RN FE R E W m R NER ©

The determination of the fair value of these financial liabilities at FVTPL
involves significant estimates made by management.
BEZSERATESABRZUWBEEBEZATESRAE
BREET -

EEEH

Therefore, we identify the fair value measurement of these financial
liabilities at reporting date as a key audit matter.

At P ZEVBRERN RS B2 A FEFEZR AREREREE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNAEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of preferred shares classified as
financial liabilities at FVTPL included:
BHAEDEARATEF ABER VBEGE Y
BEBRHAFTEFEZEBEREF B -

- Assessing the objectivity, independence and
competence of the Valuer;

- M EMEENL B RS

- With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation
techniques and methodologies applied in
the circumstances, reviewing management’s
key inputs with supporting evidence such as
market data obtained independently; and

- EAFEEERNME T - B EER
THEBNBERMETE EHERRE
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- Examining the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosure of the fair
value measurement of the financial liabilities

at FVTPL.
- BERAVFEFABREZHFABEATE
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of agreements, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 June 2024

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
“E-WEF =%
ihr=g F#ExT FHT
€ ==27))
Continuing operations FEEEER
Revenue Y 3= 8 242,234 366,757
Cost of sales and services rendered THE KRR A KA (83,823) (204,489)
Gross profit EF 158,411 162,268
Interest revenue =R 9(a) 3,495 3,983
Other income and other gains/(losses), net  E AU A K Efhlizs
(E518) %58 9(b) (10,830) (31,503)
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HFAX (2,485) (9,403)
Administrative expenses T (34,248) (33,147)
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMERNFEWNR 20 17,038 12,964
Net gain on derecognition of financial assets 4 IFERHKEEENR BB
and liabilities W 25558 22 — 63,010
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2k 42(d) = 1,955
Finance costs B IV 11 (8,921) (16,455)
Profit before income tax BR TS B AR R 122,460 153,672
Income tax expenses FTiSHiF &2 12 (27,393) (26,889)
Profit for the year from continuing BEKEEB 2 FRHF
operations 13 95,067 126,783
Discontinued operation ERIFAZEEE
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued ~— DA% IFAF LK 2
operation FRHEF, (EE) 14(a) 170 (520)
Profit for the year FREF 95,237 126,263
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of &2 TEE AE(G
the Company: wA(E58)
— Continuing operations —FHEREEB 51,820 89,828
— Discontinued operation —BRIHEEEB 170 (520)
51,990 89,308
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWlER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-OF —T-=F
Bt 3 F#ET FHT
(geE5)
Profit attributable to non-controlling IR EREEER
interests:
— Continuing operations i 43,247 36,955
— Discontinued operation — BRI EER - =
43,247 36,955
95,237 126,263
HK cent HK cent
Al AL
Earning/(loss) per share BRER(FHE) 16
Basic and diluted: EARREE -
— Continuing operations —REREER 5.56 12.46
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREER 0.02 (0.07)
5.58 12.39

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBRAR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E_ME —E =4
ihr=g FERT FHET
(&g E5))
Profit for the year FRER 95,237 126,263
Other comprehensive expenses, Hitt 2% - HIREIE
net of tax
Items that may be reclassified HEAEHEE B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE -
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINEBIBREZ
of financial statements of foreign ME X =58
operations (61,115) (86,357)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange REERBARBEN
reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries DHERETE N FE 42(d) - (685)
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EETSEZE
profit or loss: Bamr)EE -
Fair value changes of equity BAFEFAEMEE
instruments at fair value through other WA (MEAFEFAE
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) fAEEWAL B R LT
ARV EZE = (6,104)
Other comprehensive expenses for FREMZEEX
the year, net of tax HRBiE (61,115) (93,146)
Total comprehensive income FR2EBALE
for the year 34,122 33,117
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AREEEAELEZE
attributable to owners of the Company: WA (B 4% :
— Continuing operations —REREEB 1,265 13,026
— Discontinued operation —BERIEREER 170 (520)
1,435 12,506
Total comprehensive income attributable FFEREZELEEZE
to non-controlling interests: N L
— Continuing operations —REREER 32,687 20,611
— Discontinued operation —BRIEEEER = -
32,687 20,611
34,122 33,117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma BRI R

At 31 March 2024 R =ZF—MMF=A=+—H

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-MF =
B 52 FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 19(a) 5,623 5,652
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19(b) 3,703 1,033
Investment properties "EYE 20 1,507,397 1,565,499
Goodwill Bk 21 = =
1,516,723 1,572,184
Current assets REBEE
Trade and lease receivables B RINERR L ERFAERE 23 39,887 190,338
Prepayments, deposits and TR RIE - ' RHEAM
other receivables FE U sk TE 24 6,706 140,250
Financial assets at fair value through BRFERABR(RATE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") AR VM BEE 25 10,630 12,937
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSHEER 26 590,722 83,092
647,945 426,617
Current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables EH M FE T 5RIB 27 39,668 54,764
Bank borrowings RITER 28 160,269 154,265
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 2,727 1,160
Promissory notes B 32 - 5,138
Tax payables FERI IR 3,656 3,858
206,320 219,185
Net current assets REEEFE 441,625 207,432
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRABAR 1,958,348 1,779,616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI &

At 31 March 2024 R =—ZF—_MFE=A=+—H

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= ks - ———
B 5 FExT FHT
Non-current liabilities EREBARE
Other payable H i - R IE 27 10,396 =
Bank borrowings RITER 28 - 20,569
Other borrowings E b AR 29 - 10,652
Preferred shares B 30 379,015 378,234
Lease liabilities HEa®R& 31 3,060 2,133
Deferred tax liabilities REBHIERE 33 211,814 194,889
604,285 606,477
Net assets EEFE 1,354,063 1,173,139
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital AR 34 10,806 7,206
Reserves f#H 1,006,545 861,908
Equity attributable to owners AAREBABEER
of the Company 1,017,351 869,114
Non-controlling interests FERER 336,712 304,025
Total equity B 1,354,063 1,173,139

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 192 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors (the “Directors”) on 28
June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cao Sheng
R
Director

EFE

FABEFINEMBGEVERRENR S
—WFEXNAZTA \BHRES((EF)gbERR
R THTINESRREE

Liu Yong
25
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HEZ =T _WF=A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ANAREARGRE
(Accumulated
Share Capitl ~ Exchange  Revaluation fvod Other losses)/ Non-
Share premium reserve reserve reserve eserve reserve retained controlling Total
apital  (Note37(i)  (Note37(i))  (Note37(ii))  (Note37(v)  (Note37(v)) (Note37(vi)) earnings Total interests equity
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000. HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 1000
BATE
HTARHRE
BfEE  EARE  ENEE  EMRE  GARE  AbBRE (ZHEE)/
B (MR (REETG))  (REsnGi)  (RE3nng)  (WaE3n))  (RSSE3T) REEA & eRER fEs
Tin T T T T S T S Thn Thn Thn
Belance at 1 April 2022 WZEZZ4WA-A
: 720563 3,087,641 171007 53,883 33865 2170 18842 (3,167,703) 901,948 3790 1,139,868
Changes in equty for the year
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 89308 89308 36,955 126,063
Other comprehensive expenses for the year
Exchange differences on transation of
financial statements of foreign operations - - - (70013) - - - - (10013) (16,344) (86,357)
Reclasificaton of cumulative exchange resere
upon disposal of subsidiares (note 42(d)) - - - (685) - - - - (685) - (685)
Falr value changes of equity nsiruments at FVOC
- - - - - (6,104) - - (6,104) - (6,104)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income
for the year - - - (70,698) - (6,104) - 89,308 12,506 20611 BT
Change innonvcontollng nterestswithoutlossof -~ A& % 25/ EM3EETR:
control (ote 426) Er BIlRDG) - - - - - - (45,340 - @3 G438 (9%
Release upon derecogniton offnancil asets BEkER
(note 22) ) - - - - - 824 - (28.274) - - -
Share premium reduction (note 37() - (3087641 - - - - - 3,087,641 - - -
Share reorganisation (note 34(a) (7113,357) - 451697 - - - - 261,660 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 S
“t-AgR 7,206 - 028,724 (16815) 33865 - (2649) 22,63 869,114 304005 1,173,139
Balance at 1 April 2023
1206 - 628,724 (16,815) 33,865 - (26,498) 12632 869,114 304,005 1,113,139
Changes in equity for the yer.
Profit for the ear - - - - - - - 51,990 51,990 BuU1 95,231
Other comprehensive expenses for the year
Exchange differences on transation of finandial
staternents of foreign operations - - - (50,555) - - - - (50,555) (10,560) (61,115)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income
for the year - - - (50,555) - - - 51,990 1435 30681 U0
Issue of ew shares note 34(b) BTk 3600 146,160 - - - - - - 149,760 - 149,760
Transacton costsncurredin comectonvith 5%
the issue of shares - (2,958) - - - - - - (2.958) - (2.958)
Balance at 31 Mach 2024 H-BZREZR
St-RER 10,806 143,202 628,724 (67.370) 33,865 - (26,498) 294,622 1,017,351 336,112 1,354,063

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁr%%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BEZE =T _F=A=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—ENF ===
s FET FHET
(g E7)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before income tax from: AN TEE ZBRAEEA
wmAL(EE) -
— continuing operations —RELEED 122,460 153,672
— discontinued operation — BRI EEER 170 (520)
Adjustments for: FTHNIER fEL A%
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB RREITE
equipment 13, 19(a) 1,631 498
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 13, 19(b) 2,558 3,485
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment BRI & ERAER
loss under expected credit loss model on BHREREEBBENXT
trade and lease receivables, net 2 CREEEREE) RE
BT 6(a), 9(b) (9,361) 3,911
Reversal of impairment loss under expected 1% & I H Ath R GRIB A B HA (=
credit loss model on deposits and other BEEEEX T 2REEE
receivables, net g JEIDE 2 6(a), 9(b) (3,925) (1,789)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WEMEEEE
equipment 13 7 11
Fair value loss on financial assets at EATEF ABRm 2%
FVTPL, net EEZ N TEER SRR 9(b) 2,307 7,753
Fair value gain on investment properties "EWENTFER S 20 (17,038) (12,964)
Fair value loss on promissory notes AN BB AT EEE 9(b), 32 = 524
Fair value loss on preferred shares BRI AFEERE 9(b) 20,780 19,453
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W 14(b), 42(d) (422) (1,955)
Gain on lease modification ME szl 9(b) - (89)
Net gain on derecognition of financial RItBRVBEEREEZ
assets and liabilities Wz 588 22 - (63,010)
Interest income K B U A 9(a) (3,495) (3,983)
Interest expenses F B 11 8,921 16,455
124,593 121,452
Decrease/(increase) in trade and lease B 5N ER R & R & 08
receivables A () 151,252 (49,072)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other TEf}FRIE « & R H A fE K
receivables RIE R, 73,154 43,065
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 FE T BR 3R E M B 5 5R0E
L (2,632) (13,815)
Net cash generated from operating RETEFIB2RETE
activities 346,367 101,630
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HEZ =T _WF=A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-EF —ET-=F
B 5 FHExT FET
€:=2))
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE %% - BE & & E 19(a) (1,925) (5,237)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE BELEEZ
and equipment 8 #A 29 =
Additions to investment properties LI E Y E 20 (7,023) (9,922)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at & & A FEF ABRE 2 5
FVTPL BEZFSHIE = 86
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEEATEFTABRE ZH®
BE - (64)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W is IR AR i 2 = (6,013)
Net cash inflow from the disposal of HEMBATMERSRA
subsidiaries FRE 14(b), 42(d) 430 1,592
Proceeds from rescission of contracts BRI B K Z P13 22 58,385 73,334
Repayment of loans from third parties FE=HEEEXR - 1,144
Interest received B2 U H B 3,495 134
Net cash generated from RETEBFB2RETHE
investing activities 53,391 55,054
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 1S 50R 34(b) 149,760 -
Transaction costs incurred in connection with  FEEETTRYD E A 2 X SR A
the issue of shares (2,958) -
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (5,469) (101,843)
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER (10,000) (1,698)
Repayment of principal portion of lease EEHEAaEASID
liabilities (2,617) (3,405)
Repayment of interest portion of lease EEHEAENEIHD
liabilities (179) (308)
Repayment of promissory notes BEEARER 32 (5,000) (6,000)
Interest paid EAHLE (9,532) (14,840)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFBHME (A2
financing activities ReFE 114,005 (128,094)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERASEERRBMFE
EQUIVALENTS 513,763 28,590
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) s E (6,133) (3,413)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FORERREEEEE
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 83,092 57,915
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRREEEER
AT END OF YEAR 26 590,722 83,092
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands. Its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is Units 4307-08, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

At 31 March 2024, the Directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Cosmic Shine
International Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"). This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are as follows:

Continuing operations

- Oil and liquefied chemical terminal (the “Oil and Liquefied
Chemical Terminal”) representing the business of leasing of
oil and liquefied chemical terminal, together with its storage
and logistics facilities (the “Port and Storage Facilities”), and
provision of agency services and trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products; and

Discontinued operation

- Insurance brokerage service (the “Insurance Brokerage
Service"”) representing the business of providing insurance
brokerage service (see note 14).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42(a).

1.
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(TBgezpfrl) £77 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Z—F—

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”). Material
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amendments
to HKFRSs which are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise
stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. HmEEE@m)

(b) Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai (b) kEHEBHRREXMAR

Forest Source Mining Industry Developing

BRAFA(EFEHRER]) K

Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner RELTRRBEMBER
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry AR (REHHRR]) BEE
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”) ZEFERATBEETBR
and deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI BRARHRREE AR
Ms Leung Lai Ching (“Ms Leung”)’s legal status as REBFLL ([RLL)IERBEE

director and legal representative in QHFSMI and
IMFSMI remained unchanged in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative of
both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In September 2009, the sole
shareholder of QHFSMI and IMFSMI (i.e. a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) resolved to remove Ms Leung’s
capacity as director and legal representative of both QHFSMI
and IMFSMI with immediate effect. However, the respective
members of the board of directors and legal representative
of QHFSMI and IMFSMI were not officially changed up to
the date of authorisation for issue of the Group’s financial
statements as Ms Leung, being the legal representative,
was not cooperative and failed to provide the requested
documents and corporate seals.

Transfer of exploration licence without the Company’s
acknowledgment, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in 2007.
QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration licence, which
conferred QHFSMI the rights to conduct exploration work
for the mineral resources in the titanium mine (the “Mine”)
at Xiao Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). In 2010, the Directors discovered that
the exploration licence held by QHFSMI was transferred to
a company known as A5 &/ NLILRIREZEER AT (in
English, for identification purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xiao
Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited)
("Yuen Xian Company”) at a consideration of Renminbi
("RMB") 8,000,000 (the "Change of Exploration Right
Agreement”) without the Company’s acknowledgment,
consent or approval. Ms Leung is one of the directors and
the legal representative of Yuen Xian Company. Without
the exploration licence, QHFSMI no longer had the rights
to, among other things, carry out exploration of the mineral
resources of the Mine, access to the Mine and neighbouring
areas and has no priority in obtaining the mining rights of
the Mine.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

Final decision on the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement

As soon as the Group had discovered the loss of QHFSMI's
exploration licence, the Group commenced the legal
proceedings against Ms Leung for getting back the
exploration licence. In March 2016, the Company received
the final decision letter from the Qinghai Procuratorate that
the Change of Exploration Right Agreement was invalid.

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Given that (i) the discovery of the loss of significant assets
of QHFSMI; (ii) Ms Leung’ s legal status as director and
legal representative in QHFSMI and IMFSMI remained
unchanged; and (iii) the Group was unable to obtain the
financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the Directors
considered that the Group had no power over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
QHFSMI and IMFSMI and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE
2. WEEE@
(b) XREHBEEBRREXERME

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

Subsequent development following the obtaining of
the PRC Court’s final decision

After obtaining of the PRC Court’s final decision, the
Group instructed its PRC lawyers to seek the enforcement
of the judgment with the view to regaining its controlling
power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI. Further, the Group was
previously given to understand by its legal advisers that
Yuen Xian Company had obtained the mining licence on
the Mine, which had caused complexity to the Group’s
enforcement efforts. The Group is taking legal advice from
its PRC lawyers in this regard.

The Group is currently making an overall review of its
position in QHFSMI, IMFSMI and the Mine, including
without limitation the possible disposal of the holding
company of QHFSMI and IMFSMI to limit our loss on this
matter, if the recovery chance and recovery amount do
not justify the spending of further legal costs and efforts.
In the opinion of the Directors, the outcome of the review
is unlikely to result in any further impact on the financial
position and operations of the Group, as QHFSMI and
IMFSMI had already been deconsolidated since 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(9]

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties;

- financial assets at FVTPL; and

- financial liabilities at FVTPL (i.e. preferred shares).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. EAHITRKEITEEBHK

TO HKFRSs HEEL
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are REFERGER 2T RS
mandatorily effective for the current year R BB EHREER
The Group has applied the following new and amendments AEBEERREGEVBHMEEAERS
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are BERSETAIASB/MAO T RGBT
mandatorily effective for the current accounting period for the BEETBHREER  AATBUBREE
preparation of the consolidated financial statements: Bl 7N & 51 A i o 1l A2 2K
HKFRS 17 and related Insurance Contracts BEMBWMEERN  REBREL
amendments FNT7 9 RAB@AEET
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting EB D EAFE 1R SETBUROEE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies REBTBRE
HERIEBWmE
25 (BETAN)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BB A HER
Estimates EXLACCHIFN)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BB HE - H5EEH
and Liabilities arising from a 8125 (IBETA) BERBEAY
Single Transaction BYIRE TR IE
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — EB G ER BB E—
Pillar Two Model Rules F125 (IBETA) SRR A
The Group has not applied any amendments to HKFRSs that is not REBEWEERATMRASF ™M RE
yet effective for the current accounting period. The application WIS BBV B WMEEL - RAFEFE
of the new standard or amendments to HKFRSs in the current &R AT RIS B RT BB B 5 i & £ A
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions WEEAEBRANFERBTFENTB
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the KR RRB R RZEREMBREME
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. BEELEERNERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HKFRSSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
amendments to HKFRS that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
Related Amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants?
Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Lack of Exchangeability?

determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4, EBEREFBE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date on
which control commences until the date on which control
ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests (“NCI") either at fair
value or at the NCl's proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NCl are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
company. NCI in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between NCI and
the owners of the Company. Loans from holders of NCI
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position depending on the nature of
the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Z—F—

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4(i)(ii)), unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group classified as held for sale).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). They
are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction
costs. Subsequently, the consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those investees, until the date on
which significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method, together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, after applying the
expected credit loss (“ECL"”) model to such other long-term
interests where applicable (see note 4(i)(i)).

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent there is no evidence
of impairment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9]

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 4(i)(ii)).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries and associate, are set out
follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at FVTPL for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 7. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. If such an election is made for a
particular investment, at the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained earnings/accumulated losses and
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZ ==

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including conditional promissory notes
measured at fair value) are initially measured at fair
value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with
changes therein recognised in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedges of net investment in a foreign operation.

Investment properties

Investment property is initially measured at cost, and
subsequently at fair value with changes therein recognised
in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is recognised in accordance with note 4(r)(ii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 4(i)(ii)):

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment (see note 4(h)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4, EXRESFTBE@

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit
or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative

periods are as follows:

— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the term of
the lease or 3 years

— Furniture and office 5 years
equipment
— Motor vehicles 4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

(9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Z—F—

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Control is conveyed where the customer has both the

right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

()

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of 12
months or less, and leases of low-value items. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value item, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If not capitalised,
the associated lease payments are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24

4.

BEARETEE @

(h)

HEEE

REXFIRE  AREEFHAH
=hEHBE—BAEE - HaM
TRNE-BRBEHAERAEBNE
ENBRRE  MENAREE—
FHE - HEFAEETNEAEH
MEENBZAGRESBALIE

BRI - R E S o

() ERARMBA
WadHeesBHERY M
HEMD AAKEDE
BAOMIEEER D RA
BREEERD REMBERM
FHERBOIRMBEHE
BEEEERY

REERHKBEH A5H
HREMEEEREER
B ERERS12EA X
NTHEHEE MEEE
HEBHEERIRI - B ARE
EREEEEBRIZEE
REBEERERE LA
HEEEERCHEE -
RFAEAR( - BIAERED
HERMNRNEERRFL
MEENIBETER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability, and hence
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the
following types of right-or-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair
value (see note 4(f)); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the leasehold interest
are carried at cost (see note 4(g)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZ ==

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits are accounted for
separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to investments
in non-equity securities carried at amortised cost.
Any excess of the nominal value of the initial fair
value of the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
if the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a lease modification, which means a change in the
scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract, if
such modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee.
Otherwise, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non- lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 4(r)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 4(h)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE
4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including time deposits, bank balances,
trade and other receivables); and

- lease receivables.
Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls between
the contractual and expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate; and
- lease receivables: discount rate used in the

measurement of the lease receivables.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4., BEREFHEHE@®

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) GEEFEREEREM@E
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) KREHBETAREKHEE

lease receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

ECL are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECL: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECL: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-months ECLs:

- financial instruments that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date;
and

- other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued) for which credit risk
(i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

HEREBREERERAT / —T-=/-WNFFHK 79

HEZEEERE (F)

FERAEEER (&)

BHEEBEBRRAUATE

R E

- REAEHREER
B EEHERE
HEIg 12 A RA
REEEE BN EMH
mEMZEK: &

- EHRHERER:
ERERABYEER
BREELNZIEE 2
BHFHAMAT
EEENEMHMER
ZHEK -

AEBABER 288
EEFEENCHEAEFRE
B METAEIA12(EA
BEHMEEEESETE

- RBERBMEER
EREEERRDN
MIETE : &

- EERR (BT
BB FHAELE
EHMER) B Mk
ERIARIL KRB
Ny B A B 7% T
H(BHEE#ELENE
A ©

BHRYRR REEREE
PIER B R R E B RA
ERE2HEREEBHEN
THEAE -



80

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

0}

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument (including a loan commitment)
has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when measuring ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment, that includes forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial instrument to
have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of
‘investment grade’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments and
lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECL is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EXREFBEK @)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) GEFEEREERE@

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) KEMBETAREKHEE
lease receivables (Continued) FEZEEEE (F)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued) HBRIEE B 5 EE

(#&)
= the disappearance of an active market for = FHEEFEITALR
a security because of financial difficulties of B 75 R 2 i 2k K OF
the issuer. BT o
Write-off policy MR F
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is M EE BRI MENL
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent 5T B IR [ BT &= 5 PR 8H
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This (Fosk 28 - —RIBER
is generally the case when the Group determines RANEEE GRS ANE
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of AEERHREMEER
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to R ez EE R
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. AHR 2 B »
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was HEeRRBEDMEEE
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of s k=) N e L A A E
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which ERERARERE -
the recovery occurs.
(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets (i) FE B EE R E

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than investment properties) to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment.

If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (“CGUs"). Goodwill arising
from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the resulting
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 4(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an

unconditional right to receive consideration and only

the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction

price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing

component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see note 4(i)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4, EXRESFTBE@

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

)

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and other short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL (see note

A()(0).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Preferred shares

The Group’s redeemable preference shares are classified
as financial liabilities, because they bear non-discretionary
dividends and are redeemable in cash by the holders. Non-
discretionary dividends thereon are recognised as interest
expense in profit or loss as accrued.

Non-redeemable preference shares are classified as equity,
because they bear discretionary dividends, do not contain
any obligations to deliver cash or other financial assets
and do not require settlement in a variable number of the
group’s equity instruments. Discretionary dividends thereon
are recognised as equity distributions on approval by the
Company'’s shareholders.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequently, these borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with
note 4(t).

(k)

(0

(m)

(n)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(0]

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.

Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-
based payments granted to employees is measured
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
amount is generally recognised as an expense, with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting
period of the awards. The amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of
awards for which the related service conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised is based on the number of awards that
meet the related service conditions at the vesting
date.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
costs for a restructuring.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4, ERXEFHE#@E

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also
includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;

- temporary differences related to investment in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill; and
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

- those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted to
implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with note 4(f), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date, unless the property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4, EXRESFTBE@

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract, which is determined based on the incremental
costs of fulfilling the obligation under that contract and
an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling
that contract. Before a provision is established, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

(q)

HEREBREERERAT / —T-=/-NFFHK 89

BERIREE

—RME - BETEBRRRRE A
mZHERRREERABRRER
B 1) ST ik O A5 AT A1) 2R BR IR TR AR 2K

AenE8METE -

BEAHZBB K LEHTES
PR R HE R A KR TR HS RO (B
DIRBEEITZAMNATEENEE
FRAIA K BB TTRZ B B KRR
HMp A H) D BLEE) PR BRIEE
MIRETE - REEERER - A%
Ept %A IR A ERERRE
BB -

fin & A M as M B TR INR Z 7 5E
BRI - AN ARBCRIEL A
SfhEt - AIREEREARANEAA
& BEIRINR AT BEE K A Bk
Hho MAEEZ BEERBRFERK
ZRAREMHEEHET ERER
Bk NTERBERABARE B
BIRINR AT e ML ARAE 2 BIBR AN o

il

HEEB BTN DR
EHRE—HEE  AIRETRTE
IEREERER - BERHNE
E-EEMANSHERNER
HRRTE (&



90

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Z—F—

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is
accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a gross
basis, including the sale of oil and liquefied chemical
products that are sourced externally. The Group is
also the agent for certain of its revenue transactions
and recognised revenue on a net basis, including the
agency income for the trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products that are sources externally. In
determining whether the Group acts as a principal
or as an agent, it considers whether it obtains
control of the products before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s
ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as
value added tax or other sales taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised
as an integral part of the total rental income, over
the term of lease. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. The “effective interest rate” is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. In calculating interest income, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired).
However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4., BEREFHEHE@®

(r)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the exchange reserve, except to the extent
that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or
partially such that control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the exchange
reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. On
disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that foreign operation that have been attributed to the
NCI shall be derecognised, but shall not be reclassified to
profit or loss. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in
a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI. When the
Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture
while retaining significant influence or joint control, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24

4.

BEARETEE @

(s)

(t)

SNEIRE (&)

BINEBHEERBE (BREKE
EEZEHERAFERE) BRRE
HEMERME BB - BINETR
MIRARRASIER 5 ANEXRGE

SN 22 BRI H Ath 2 T Ui 2 FE R Q0 Y
FEX ARG EREEESR
EIRERE SRR ©

fisd 22 BB sk B 0 H & B I E T i 3k
RIEFINE - EXPENIIARES
BB EBEANELHER
SAEREEFOBRAED  FARLE
Wk BBz — /o - W S8
BONETEH B A - EZAEINE
TSR M O 5F B 10 FRFE AR 2 AV [
REBRRFEBRLERR  EF
REFHEEER - WARELE
HRM B A AR A D B R E
B Rt BB ENS
BRI ED - EAKEELE
MAOBERRRAE AR MRE
FENLAHARZHE  RA2R
ZHBER D EH DB EER o

& TR A

RERERBE B EERXAR
KERRREFEUERER SR
EEERRZERKAR  9ER(
RRBEEZBORA - B ERK
RGP EE B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

4, EXRESFTBE@

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the
earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria
to be classified as held for sale.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued operation,
the comparative statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation
had been discontinued from the start of the comparative
year.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the Group’s
parent.

(u)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EXREFBEK @)

(v) Related parties (Continued) (v) BEEAL@®E
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) i & NHERAEHE —
following conditions applies: EEEEREREEFR
(i) The entity and the Group are members of (i) ZEREANEEHEB
the same group (which means that each R—&SBZ2KERQ
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is Al (Eﬂ%i%at—A
related to the others). A B AR KA
ZHBARNHER
&) o
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture (ii) —HEERS—E
of the other entity (or an associate or joint Gl /NI
venture of a member of a group of which EE(REEKE
the other entity is a member). N ol RN §
GEME HfH
tEEAKEAQT]) o
(iif) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (iii) W EE L A ER
third party. FE=AHEERE -
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) —HEBREE=F
and the other entity is an associate of the ERZEaEE
third entity. ms—EBEBAUERZ
FEZREBERZHE
NS
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZEBAAEEK
for the benefit of employees of either the BAEEBBEL
Group or an entity related to the Group. ERREENRR

S BB EFET A o

96 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24



For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the Directors have made the following accounting

judgement:

()

Control over Shandong Shundong Port Services
Company Limited (“Shundong Port”)

Shundong Port is an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which the Group had
only 46.47% equity proportion as at 1 April 2022,
and increased to 55.17% equity proportion as
at 31 March 2023 and 2024 subsequent to the
completion of the acquisition of additional 8.5%
equity proportion during the year ended 31 March
2023. The remaining shareholdings are owned
by several shareholders that are unrelated to the
Group. Details of Shundong Port are set out in note
42(a).

Prior to the completion of acquisition of 8.5% equity
proportion in Shundong Port during the year ended
31 March 2023, the Directors assessed whether the
Group had control over Shundong Port based on
whether the Group had the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of Shundong Port unilaterally.
With 66.67% voting right in Shundong Port’s board
of directors, the Directors concluded that the Group
had sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct
the relevant activities of Shundong Port prior to
the completion of the acquisition of 8.5% equity
proportion in Shundong Port and therefore the
Group had control over Shundong Port.
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Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(i)

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Note 22 describes that investment in Tai‘an Wanyue
Real Estate Company Limited (“Tai‘an Wanyue”) is
treated as an equity instruments at FVOCI although
the Group has 40% ownership interest in Supreme
Success Company Holdings Limited (“Supreme
Success”) and indirectly through Supreme Success
to hold 28% effective ownership interest in Tai‘an
Wanyue. Such investment was rescinded during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Prior to the rescission of the investment in Tai‘an
Wanyue, the Directors assessed whether the Group
has significant influence over Supreme Success and
Tai‘an Wanyue based on whether the Group has
the practical ability to participate in policymaking
processes and the relevant activities of Supreme
Success and Tai'an Wanyue. Pursuant to a
shareholder agreement entered into with another
shareholder of Supreme Success, the Directors
concluded that the Group has no representative
on the board of directors of Supreme Success
and Tai'an Wanyue and hence not participate in
policymaking processes and other relevant activities
of Supreme Success and Tai‘an Wanyue. Therefore,
the Group has no significant influence over Supreme
Success and Tai'an Wanyue and accordingly, the
investment is classified as equity instruments at
FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(iii)

Principal versus agent consideration (agent)

The Group is considered as an agent for its
contracts with customers relating to the sales of
oil and liquefied chemical products as the Group
did not obtain the control over oil and liquefied
chemical products before passing on to customers
taking into consideration indicators such as the
Group is not primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise and not exposed to inventory risk. When
the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the
Group recognises an agency income in the amount
it expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
did not recognised any agency income relating to
sales of oil and liquefied chemical products (2023:
HK$8,062,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(iv)

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products. The Group concluded that the
Group acts as the principal for such transactions as
it controls the specified good before it is transferred
to the customer after taking into consideration
indicators such as the Group is primarily responsible
for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods.
The Group is also subject to inventory risk and
has discretion in establishing the price of the
goods. When the Group satisfies the performance
obligation, the Group recognises trading revenue
in the gross amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled as specified in the
contracts.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
Group recognised revenue relating to trading of
oil and liquefied chemical products amounted to
HK$78,091,000 (2023: HK$201,223,000).

“HE=ZA=1+—HLLFE
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(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 7 contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to valuations of investment
properties, equity instruments at FVOCI and certain financial
liabilities at FVTPL. Other significant sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

()

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2024 at
their fair value of approximately HK$1,507,397,000
(2023: HK$1,565,499,000). The fair value was
based on valuations conducted by an independent
qualified valuer using property valuation technigques
which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions including estimates of future rental
income from investment properties using current
market rentals and yields as inputs. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported
in the consolidated income statement. Details of the
fair value measurements of investment properties
are set out in note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

5. =rtHETRM&EF @

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(ii) Estimation of the fair value of financial assets

and financial liabilities

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period as disclosed in note 7.

The fair value of financial investments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially affect
the respective fair value of these financial assets.
Further details are included in note 7.

The preferred shares issued by the Shundong
Port are not traded in an active market and the
respective fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group applied the discounted cash
flow method to determine the underlying equity
value of Shundong Port and the fair value of the
preferred shares. Key assumptions such as the
timing of the declarations of dividends were based
on the Group’s best estimation. Further details are
included in note 30.

The promissory notes issued by the Group are not
traded in an active market and the respective fair
value is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group applied the scenario probability
analysis method to determine the fair value of the
promissory notes. Key assumptions such as the
probability of fulfilment of conditions were based
on the Group’s best estimation. Further details are
included in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii)

ECL of receivables

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of receivables. Receivables
are categorised by individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group estimates the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses for receivables based on the ageing of
overdue balances, repayment history of individual
debtors, debtor creditworthiness, historical write-off
experience, existing customer-specific and market
conditions and forward-looking information.

The Group considers the following indicators when
assessing the credit risks, such as the changes in
macroeconomic conditions, probabilities of default
and internal or external credit ratings, or expected
operating performance of the customer, etc. At
every reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward
looking information are analysed. Such assessment
involves a significant degree of judgement by the
Directors.

Further details are included in note 6(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv) Impairment losses of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a non-financial asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and
an impairment loss may be recognised. The
carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the CGU containing goodwill is the greater of the
fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price because
guoted market prices for these assets or CGUs are
not readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
or the CGU are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Directors use all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and amount
of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

v)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Directors carefully evaluate tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of these
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account changes in tax legislations. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and cumulative tax losses.

As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which they can
be utilised, Directors’ judgement are required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits. The
Directors assessment are constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HBERERRIBTAY
AF{E

Categories of financial instruments MBITRESE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ME —TZ=F
FHET FET
Financial assets: BBEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVFEFABRIMEEE 10,630 12,937
Financial assets at amortised cost (including 1% # $5 7K 2 71| BR 60 B 7S & B
cash and cash equivalents) (PERekESEEL) 631,542 337,112
Financial liabilities: BKasE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RATEFAERZMBEE 379,015 378,234
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REIEK AT RN M A E 210,387 245,005

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. In addition, the Group also exposed to equity
price risk arising from its investments in other equity. The exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

BERREERMEIAEZ
VNS =RE )

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

BEEREEEERBER @

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and lease receivables, deposits and other receivables,
time deposits and bank balances. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from time deposits and bank balances are
limited because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from rental deposit is considered to be low, taking
into account (i) the landlord’s credit rating and (ii) the
remaining lease term and the period covered by the rental
deposits.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management policy
under which individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers and lease receivables are normally
due within 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 90 days past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At 31 March 2024, 99.6% (2023: 53.4%) of the total
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers and
lease receivables was due from the Group’s single largest
customer within the Qil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HXEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE @)

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and HERREREBZEREBX @

policies (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB @)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with KEEFEHNZEZENRARIE
customers and lease receivables (Continued) W& HE ()
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEEZERRNEPEREESRE
arising from contracts with customers and lease receivables MEBATERBRFEHNCESE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated W BR 3R I FE U FH & FRIE 2 B ia
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit % BHESBERBEERET
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss HE - BHAREEBATNEEESRE
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance KRIWABRTRAEFPSBETEX
based on past due status is not further distinguished TREBEER - ERa A RENE
between the Group’s different customer bases. BEETINERAEEINREFE

RzEE—FED -

The following table provides information about the Group’s TRE‘RBEAEEREREFEL
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables arising 2B SRR R FERTE ERRIER
from contracts with customers and lease receivables: EERBRIEHEEBENER
2024
—EomE
Gross carrying
Expected loss rate amount Loss allowance
% HK$'000 HK$’000
EHEEE IREEAHE EERE
% FTExT THET
PRC H
— Trade receivable arising - RAREFAHNZES
from contracts with JE U BR 3R
customers 65.4 430 281
~ Lease receivables —EWHEERIEA 4.4 41,583 1,845
42,013 2,126
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with

customers and lease receivables (Continued)

BEREREERMEIAEZ
NEE @)

BEEREEEERBEX #

(a)

EER B (®&)

REBEFENZE L BURHIRIE
W g %A ()

2023
—E-=F
Gross carrying
Expected loss rate amount Loss allowance
% HK$'000 HK$'000
HHEEX FRE(ERRE BiR R
% TET TERT
PRC H
— Trade receivable arising - REEPEAIZES
from contracts with & U AR 3R
customers 6.0 173,810 10,373
— Lease receivables — R ERE 5.8 28,568 1,667
202,378 12,040

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over

the past 24 months. These rates are adjusted to reflect

differences between economic conditions during the period

over which the historic data has been collected, current

conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions

over the expected lives of the receivables.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24

EHERXTIERBE24EAN
BERERER - BEZFLERUR
BR R St BB M S AR O AR BAROR
B RTAR S IA B A 5 [ 2 e U R IR B
HHIR MR E R 2 EE
2o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers and lease

6.

Fal= by E S B kS

“HE=ZA=1+—HLLFE

BREREERMEIE 2
DNYE )

M RERERE B R RBER &)

(@) FERR@

REEFEHNZEZ BRI RE
W EHE ()
RBE_T_MOFR_FT_=F=

A=t BLEFENKBEEFEHN

receivables during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2B S IR N EWFE & B &
2023 is as follows: ERERNEHOT :
Trade receivables
arising from
contracts with Lease
customers receivables Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEFEH
ZEZEWER EWEERE Fo
FET FHET FHET
Balance at 1 April 2022 i
MA—B#% 8,786 - 8,786
Impairment losses recognised  #32B (E /&5 18 10,388 1,669 12,057
Impairment losses reversed  # Bl (B /&5 18 (8,146) - (8,146)
2,242 1,669 3,911
Exchange differences [ 5 E%R (655) () (657)
Balance at 31 March 2023 ~ HRZT==4%
ZA=Zt+—B#&&% 10,373 1,667 12,040
Balance at 1 April 2023 RZZEZ=F
MA—B#% 10,373 1,667 12,040
Impairment losses recognised  #ERR (B &5 18 284 1,863 2,147
Impairment losses reversed Bl (B /&5 18 (9,913) (1,595) (11,508)
(9,629) 268 (9,361)
Exchange differences PEHERE (463) (90) (553)
Balance at 31 March 2024 RZ-Z-F
ZA=t—-B#&& 281 1,845 2,126

The origination of new trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers net of those settled resulted in a
decrease in loss allowance of approximately HK$9,629,000
(2023: an increase of HK$2,242,000) contributed to the
decrease (2023: increase) in the loss allowance.

RERERREZRERAT / —T=

HBRELEERBERFANZES
JE W BR % %?&Eﬂa%&ﬁﬁyi@
9,629,000 L (= = =4 : &N
2242000,%75)E’J%ﬁxa%}5Aiﬁ
2B RWERNEEBEREIERE
BEA(ZTZ=4F &) -

=/ ZmEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 HZ ==

6.

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables (Continued)

The origination of new lease receivables net of those settled
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of approximately
HK$268,000 (2023: HK$1,669,000) contributed to the
increase in the loss allowance.

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the Directors make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward- looking information. The Directors believe that
there are no significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12-months ECL.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for deposits and other
receivables as at 31 March 2024 and 2023:

6.

BEREREERMEIAEZ
NEE @)

BEEREEEERBEX #

(a)

EER B (®&)

REBEFENZE L BURHIRIE
W g %A ()

MBREAERWHEERBEEYE
BB EE A 268,000,%71 (=%
— =4 :1,669,000/5 T) H T E I

MEFIARE £ G EBEREL M -

BEREMENNE

RESREMEBWRENS £
BIEBEENTE  BELSH A
ENTERTHEERUAREEES
BWATEEER  THERERE
tb, i UK R TE 9 BT R B HE AT R B RE
H-BERAE ZEHEMNEER

% B 156 R A PR 4 AR RE IS A0 -
$$lﬁﬁuﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%
FTIRIAE »

TREHEEASER _T_M4F
R—ZB-_=ZF=ZA=1—H&OE=Z
K E A e YRR IR Y 15 B R B K TR
EEBENER

Gross carrying amount

REEALE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ME —ETZ=F
TExT FET
Other receivables E b U 5RI8 155 66,874
Deposits Be 814 769
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HXEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE @)
(Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and HERREREBZEREBX @
policies (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) () EERk @)
Deposits and other receivables (Continued) BERAMENE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of B RATE & I H b FE WK IE A 5 18
deposits and other receivables during the years ended HEERBZE_T_MNFR-_F=_=
31 March 2024 and 2023 is as follows: FZA=T—HIEFENZENT
Other
receivables Deposits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hit e 7e Bt
FHET FAT FAT
Balance at 1 April 2022 RZZE-_—FHNA—-B&H 835 5,368 6,203
Impairment losses BRREEE
recognised 3,916 45 3,961
Impairment losses reversed % [B1 5 (B /&5 18 (774) (4,976) (5,750)
3,142 (4,931) (1,789)
Exchange difference EHER (61) (392) (453)

Balance at 31 March 2023 HR-ZT-_=%#=A=+—H

o 3,916 45 3,961
Balance at 1 April 2023 RZEZ=FNA—B#&#H 3,916 45 3,961
Impairment losses BRREEE
recognised - 36 36
Impairment losses reversed % [B1 )5 (B /&5 18 (3,916) (45) (3,961)
(3,916) 9) (3,925)
Balance at 31 March 2024 WR-ZE-_WF=A=+—H
®er - 36 36
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

6.

(Continued)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. UHXEBEERMBEIAZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNERIERE ),
Financial risk management objectives and MEERERBFERBXK#®)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (b) RBESEMR
Individual operating entities within the Group are REBZECEEREEERS
responsible for their own cash management, including the ZESEE  BIERSANR K
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of BRENRESESERARETERD
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to the parent REF K ALY RRIEFTEH
company’s board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly Mo REEBHERTEHERER
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with PHESHERRHEETERZANIG
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient S FEIRA MRS R AIR S R E
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding FTESHBEAERERENE S
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity BE UEMNEHARRARSES
requirements in the short and longer term. wk o
The following table sets out the remaining contractual TREIAEEIETERNBAER
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s WEMRZHATERRNBBER T
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on EREHNRMRBeNE (BFEK
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest SRR EFTHOF SR - B
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, EE AR EBAROBRITRI R
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) B)RAEEANZNEFTAE -
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Weighted Over Over Total
average Within 6 months 1 year contractual
interest 6monthsor  but within  but within Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate ondemand 12 months 5 years 5 years cashflow  amounts
%  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
&4
mE 6EARE 6EANL 1ENL AERRS
THR%E BERX EnEAR BSER SENE RERE  BEE
% TEx  TEr  TER  TEn TR TEn
204 “RopE
Financial liabiiies included in other payables 3 AZH BB BBAR - 3% - 103% - 44,331 44,331
Bank horrowings HER 49 160,65 - - - 160,65 160,269
Lease liabilties HEEE 3.1 1,445 1,445 1,652 4,631 9173 5787
Preferred shares (note) B (hh) - - - - - - 379,015
196,035 1,445 12,08 4,631 214,159 589,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HXEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSS=NE )]
(Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and HERREREBZEREBX @
policies (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REESLRBE &)
Weighted Over Over Total
average Within -~ 6 months 1 year contractual
interest - 6monthsor  butwithin -~ but within Over  undiscounted ~ Carrying
rate  ondemand 12 months 5 years 5 years cshflow  amounts
%  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
a4
mE eEARE 6EANE  1EME AERRS

TamME  &BR EnEAR BSER SENE REEE BAE
%  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx TEn  TEn

03 ZBIZE
Finandial liabilties included in other payables st AR B 2B AR - 51,088 - - - 51,088 51,088
Bank borrowings R/ITER 48 154753 489 20976 - 176218 174834
Other borrowings EfER 6.7 350 350 10,700 - 11,400 10,652
Lease liabilities HEaE 47 595 595 528 5,020 6,738 3,293
Promissory notes ARER 40 5222 - - - 5222 5138
Preferred shares (note) ﬁﬂx (Hs) - - - - - - 3834
212,008 1434 32,204 5,020 250,666 623,239
Note:  The Directors estimated that there is no special dividend MizE: ESHEFIERBBRBEHR
to be declared by Shundong Port in the coming two BERKMF (ZEZ_=F:
years (2023: three years) from the reporting period end. =F)TEEREMFRRE
As at 31 March 2024, the preferred shares, of which the R-ZZE-_WMFE=A=+—8"
principal amount was RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to AN& %A AR 270,000,000
approximately HK$292,383,000) (2023: RMB270,000,000 7T (FH & M # 292,383,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$308,529,000)), have no BX)(ZTEZ=F: AR
contractual maturity. # 270,000,000 (FERH

308,529,0007%8 7t)) 18 % i%
EENHR -

The below table summarises the maturity analysis of bank TERBARKEARITZHZBER
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based EE R EERENARER SR
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the facilities EREEFRRBTETOI RS
agreements with banks. The amounts include interest T BEARIBRIEEAE T ES
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into HHORBRF - Lat kAR EE B
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do BN - EERBIRIT T KAI6E

not consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise BRI RER I*EGEZ%%?K
its discretion to demand immediate repayment and believe BiIRETEEE K HHEE -

that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

6.

(Continued)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HMEEREERMBEIAZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSERE 9
Financial risk management objectives and MEERERBFERBXK#®)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBESERR®E
Over 1 year Total Total
Within but within  undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years cash flows amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
150 LA AER
15/ 2FR RERELE BREE
THT TRT FHET FHL
2024 “B-ME 166,326 - 166,326 160,269
2023 “E-=fF 14,109 175,511 189,620 174,834
Interest rate risk () RN=RER

(9]

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate time deposits (note 26), fixed-rate
bank borrowings (note 28), other borrowings (note 29),
lease liabilities (note 31) and promissory notes (note 32).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on
bank balances (note 26).

The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate borrowings
and manages the contractual terms of the interest-bearing
financial liabilities.

In the opinion of the Directors, the expected change in
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the
interest income or bank balances and hence sensitivity
analysis is not presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

BEEREERMEIAEZ
NFE @)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

BEERBREEEERBR®

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and the exposure in
exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations of foreign
currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars against the
functional currency of the relevant Group entities.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have always
been the concern of the Group. The Directors will monitor
the foreign currency exposure closely and consider the
use of hedging instruments when the need arises. Given
the insignificant net exposure to foreign currencies, any
change in the exchange rate of foreign currencies relative
to functional currencies of the relevant Group entities is
considered to have an insignificant impact on the Group’s
profit after income tax and retained earnings.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for trading purposes. All of these
investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are
based on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities and the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed investments
that are not held for trading purposes have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.
The portfolio is diversified in terms of industry distribution in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

(d)

(e)

BE¥E R

AEBEZRHTELEERY  EX
Rk EEZBINE (BHEETRET)
HRBREASEEREER NS
FEES -

AN B — M B R R TG B
Z-EFERYERINERRIER
VEREZERAE S TA o FHsh
Wy FER RO TNEKX - SMNEE
HREAAEEERDEERESR
B (] B AR 5 3 AN S B BR TS
BN RRE BN FZEEN -

I (8 /2 B

AEBESEBIEES B R
BREMEENREZ SRR - FIF
FZEREHD LW e

REBH R ERBER AT LT -
BEARBEHZZUBEERRETHE
REERIFEFNRIEH B EER

UERAEEN RS ESF R - WIk
HEEEEMN LLMREDREER
HEEOIE Y EHERERR
%EE@J@EHMBM c WEMAREA

BRER LR BB T RIMTTE -

RREBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZWNEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock price, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit after income tax and the

retained earnings:

HEREERMBIAZ

NEE @)

BEEREEEERBER @

(e) MRERBR

RZE_NFRIFEZ=F=
A=+—8 A HEEREER
A1 A 10% - T H A #
ERBTENBERT - #8380, R5
DAREERAEH &SR RIRSB

A
2024 2023
ZECQE ZEIZE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
profitafter  (decrease) in profitafter ~ (decrease) in
income retained income retained
tax earnings tax eamings
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
RiEHE REERE
iyl REEA byl RERH
gn/(69)  #0/E) g/ (Rp)  Eh/(82)
TRn TER T T
Change in the relevant equity price RERERREY
risk variable: L89:
Increase £ 10% 1,063 1,063 10% 1,29 1,294
Decrease R (10%) (1,083) (1,063) (10%) (1,29 (1,294)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(e)

()

Equity price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after income tax (and retained earnings)
that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock
price at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to equity price risk at
the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index or the relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

BEEREERMEIAEZ
NEE @)

MRS EE B ERBE®E

(e)

(f)

I 18 FEL B (4)

FREI TR TIRRRE2ESHT
RI|BEMREL - WERARER
AAEAKEMFAEMSARENER
i%i%xhﬁﬂ& ZEPET

GHAREE 2 BRATIFRZET
(&%WE%DLﬁZ%ﬁ%;°W
BRAEERGEREN D FESRE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁkmm%h%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

ﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬂ%%ﬂ_x %Zi:A
A=+ —BHIEFETERA
REEEITHN

AVE

fR B ISR P AT e B S & [
BEErMBRBZRAERES
BEBZAFERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments and the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market- observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. At the end of each reporting period, the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets and liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the Directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEFE@®

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

NV ERBE )

Fair value measurements as at
2024 categorised into
RZZ-MEHERNTERH

Fair value measurements s at
2023 categorised into
RZEZ=ERBEANTERN

AYEE NYEiE
Fair Fair
value at value at
31 March 31 March
2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level3 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R R
“EopE “EICF
=B =A
=t-H =+-H
ZATE -8 £=8 £=8 | 0¥E  E8 £24 £
T#En Thr ThR THR Thr  TER TR Tn
Recurring fair value measurements A N
Assets: BE:
Non-finencial assefs: FIREE:
- Investment properties ~RENE 150,397 - - 1507397 | 1,565,499 - 1565499
Financial assefs: TEEE:
- Held for trading - listed equity securities ~ —3/EEE - ERRAES 10,630 10,630 - - 12,937 12,937 - -
Liabilities: Bf:
Financial labilities ABEE
~ Preferred shares -BiR (379,015) - - (3719015 | (378234 - - (378234

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Y 2 4%

o

BE_E_NMER-_E-_=F=A=+—
AILFE  F—RES 2 M EeEE
MEEASEEE=R - AEENKES
REFEZHREPRERATFEEL ZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AYETE@
Information about Level 3 fair value FRAE=RAFEIFENEHR
measurements
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
fh{E B 9l EXTUBRGARE &=
Investment properties Income approach (i) Rental growth rate per 3%
annum (2023: 3%)
REME WATE () HeFERE 3%
(ZE =% :3%)
(i) Discount rate 7%
(2023: 8%)
(i) BEIRZE 7%
(ZT==%F :8%)
(iii) Capitalisation rate 4%
(2023: 5%)
(i) &AL E 4%

(ZZZ=F :5%)

Preferred shares Discounted cash flows (i) Discount rate 5.5%
(2023: 5.5%)
B BRRERE (i) BRIRZE 5.5%
(ZZE==%:55%)
Investment properties REYHE
The fair value of investment properties located in the PRC is MURAE 2 IREYHE 2 AT EFERKRAE
determined using income approach by reference to rental growth CLERGFRERERENMEREFE - 1A
rate per annum and capitalisation rate. The fair value measurement TEFEHAFHREERE - HER
is positively correlated to the rent growth rate per annum and ERERCEEIERA -

negatively correlated to the discount rate and capitalisation rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Preferred shares

The fair value of preferred shares is determined using discount
cash flow adjusted for discount rate. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount rate. The discount rate
adopted was the sum of the yield of the 30-year China Government
Bonds and the average credit spread of comparable bonds that are
similar to that of the relevant entity of the valuation. In addition
to the assumptions adopted above, the Company’s projections of
future performance were also factored into the determination of
the fair value of the Preferred Shares on the valuation date. As at
31 March 2024, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease and increase in discount rate by 1% would
have decreased and increased the Group's profit after income
tax by approximately HK$93,129,000 (2023: HK$99,415,000)
and approximately HK$64,974,000 (2023: HK$67,419,000),
respectively.

7.

DNEEFTE @

FRE=ZRPFEFENESR
(4&)

BER

BERZAFEFERAMBRSTEEE
WHBIRBAEH A - AT EFTEHRER
KEIE - FTRMAIE R B30 F FHFE
BlfE MU R R R EAAEE AT
BUHREHFMFTHEEEEZZM BRI L
FrER MmO BRER N - A AT E R R FKIBMTE
BIINEr RAEEBBELR AT EZEE ©
R-TE-_WE=A=+—H " AstEFRE
EMBEREFTIENBERLT - BHE ER
A F2 38 N1 % 15 AN & B BR BT A5 A 18 )i A
2 B K 1 AN #993,129,000 5T (==
Z =4 199,415,000 ) & 4964,974,000
BIL(ZE =% : 67,419,000/ T) °

RREBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZWNEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. A EFTE @
Information about Level 3 fair value EBE=RAFEFENER
measurements (Continued) (&)
The movements during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 ZEE=MATEFEZERRBET
in the balances of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as ZMERZE=F=A=1T—HILFE
follows: ZEBMT
Non-financial
Financial assets and liabilities assets
MHEERER FHBEE
Equity
instruments Promissory Preferred Investment
at Fvocl notes shares properties
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRATEA
A2 ERA
LERIA RS BER REME
TR TR FEL T
At 1 April 2022 RZE-"%NA—H 203,890 (45,319) (387,539) 1,666,170
Additions AE - - - 9,922
Derecognition upon rescission of contracts (note 22) A B A 41 E K LR
(Fis22) (197,786) 45,831 - -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in ~ RIEG BRI ENEHER
valuation gain on investment properties in profit A ATEARNETE
or loss* - - - 12,964
Total loss recognised in the consolidated income MreliaREAZEEEE
statement included in other income (note 9(b)* (RTAE MY (H5E90)) * - (524) (19,453) -
Total loss recognised in other comprehensive income 7 H % EL M A 1822
ERAE (6,104) - - -
Exchange differences included in “exchange STAEMEEYAEL R
reserve” in other comprehensive income MERER - 12 28,758 (123,557)
At 31 March 2023 WZE-=Z%#=ZfA=+-H - - (378,234) 1,565,499
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. AFEFE @
Information about Level 3 fair value BRE=H LA TETENEHR
measurements (Continued) (&)
The movements during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 ZEE=MATEFEZEHBREEC
in the balances of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as —HERZT_=F=A=+—H JJ:EF
follows: (Continued) ZEBINT : (&)
Non-financial
Financial assets and liabilities assets
BBEERER FRBEE
Equity
instruments Promissory Preferred Investment
at Fvodl notes shares properties
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRATEA
Ht2EEA
ZEHRIE RLRE BER REME
T FEL TET T
At 1 April 2023 RZE-=#NA—H - - (378,234) 1,565,499
Additions NE - - - 7,023
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised i~ R EEZHRN X EMELER
valuation gain on investment properties in profit AN ATEFENRFE
or loss* - - - 17,038
Total loss recognised in the consolidated income REalaRERzBRES
statement included in other income (note 9(b))* (FEAEAMA) (BFE9(0)) * - - (20,780) -
Exchange differences included in “exchange StARMZ BN TE R GE]
reserve” in other comprehensive income MELZE - - 19,999 (82,163)
At 31 March 2024 RZZ-ME=A=1+—H - - (379,015) 1,507,397
* Includes unrealised (losses)/gains recognised in profit or loss * BERBREARFAFEREGOER
attributable to balances held at the end of the reporting period: RREIE (B1E) e -
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE-Z-MEZA=1-H
IHEE - - (20,780) 17,038
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HE-Z-_=5=A=1-H
I35 - - (19,453) 12,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

8.

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are set out in note 1.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major

Wy =

AREBEHEZEBFNME

BRIZEMAMRBGRIEA D ZKBETEFEL

products or service lines is as follows: WD EAT
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
g 11 3 —EC=F
FHET FAET
(&&E5)
Continuing operations FEEEER
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEHREENEISHRBERR
customers within the scope of BEEFAHAZWE (REERFHE)
HKFRS 15 at a point in time
Disaggregated by major products or 1% * ZE Mk R4S 5
service lines
— Agency income from trading —BEEMmIABRBLEIRZ
of oil and liquefied chemical RIZBIA
products - 8,062
— Sale of oil and liquefied chemical —HEMmREREBEIMS
products 78,091 201,223
78,091 209,285
Revenue from other sources REHEMRIRE W=
Rental income from oil and liquefied  Jf fa &% 881 T S5 SEAE € W A
chemical terminal 164,143 157,472
Total revenue from continuing FREKSEER 2B KR
operations 242,234 366,757
Discontinued operation ERIEEXE
Revenue from contracts with BERAMBEREENFEISHABEAR
customers within the scope of BEFEAZWE (REMERGHEE)
HKFRS 15 at a point in time
Disaggregated by major products or 1% BE sk RS 4R E 5
service lines
- Agency income from insurance — R &L RBRIBUIA
brokerage service (Mf5E14())
(note 14(a)) 11 13
242,245 366,770
Geographical markets ih &5
— the PRC — 242,234 366,757
— Hong Kong — BB 11 13
242,245 366,770
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

REVENUE (continued)

Agency income from insurance brokerage service is from contract
with customers and recognised at a point in time when the services
are completed under the terms of each service agreement and
the revenue can be measured reliably, since only by that time the
Group has a present right to charge the customers for the service
performed. The invoice is due upon presentation.

Agency income from trading of oil and liquefied chemical products
is recognised when the Group satisfies its promise to arrange
for the oil and liquefied chemical products to be provided by
the suppliers to the customers and in the amount of any fee or
commission to which the Group is entitled for arranging the oil and
liquefied chemical products to be provided to the end customers.
Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time once control
of goods has been transferred to customers. The invoice is due
upon the delivery of goods.

Sales of oil and liquefied chemical products is recognised at a point
in time when the control of oil and liquefied chemical products has
transferred, being when the oil and liquefied chemical products
have been delivered to customers’ specific location. Following
the delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the oil and liquefied chemical products,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the oil and liquefied
chemical products and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the oil and liquefied chemical products. The normal
credit term is up to 90 days.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance obligations
on the abovementioned revenue, have original expected duration
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

9. INTEREST REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

(a) Interest revenue

M E W R E Ml A R At

W, (EE) FHE

(a) FB W=

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mEF R =F
FH#T F#&T

Continuing operations FFEAEER
Bank interest income IRITHR B A 2,717 82
Loan interest income ERA B UA = 52
Other interest income (note) E R B WA (M) 778 3,849
3,495 3,983

Note:  The amount represents the accrued interest income on
the receivables from recession of contracts (as described in
note 22) recognised by the Group during the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

9. INTEREST REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 9.
AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET (continued)

(b)

FMEWEREMBARHEAA
Wi (E58) FE @

Other income and other gains/(losses), (b) HkARHMUE "
net (B1|) F8
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—ENE —E-=F
FTER FHET
(ggE5))
Continuing operations BEEEER
Exchange loss, net (RN pi= Dot (1,379) (2,218)
Fair value loss on financial assets at AT AT ABREZUHEE
FVTPL, net NHERRFE (2,307) (7,753)
Fair value loss on preferred shares BEBR 2 AFEEE (20,780) (19,453)
Reversal of impairment loss/ & 5 FE U R 3 K FE WA & R
(impairment loss) under expected BRIBHEEBEERXT
credit loss model on trade and 2 RAEEERRE,
lease receivables, net (REEE) F358 9,361 (3,911)
Reversal of impairment loss under e REMBUGRIBERTERE
expected credit loss model on BEEEX TaRERER
deposit and other receivables, net [B5%8 3,925 1,789
Fair value loss on promissory notes 7 ¥, 2% 7 A F{EEE
(note 32) (B$5E32) - (524)
Rental income from sub-letting of SEHEEEZHSBA
leased assets 48 52
Government grants* TR #e5 = 192
Sundry income HIFIA 302 234
Gain on lease modification HEEm s s - 89
(10,830) (31,503)
Discontinued operation ERIFABEEE
Government grants* IR I 478 B >
(note 14(a)) (MI3E14()) - 24
(10,830) (31,479)
* Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in * BT EZHERBBERT

connection with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund
of the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would
otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all funding on
paying wages to the employees. At 31 March 2023, there
was no unfulfilled condition or contingencies relating to

the government grants.

RERFHENEESHZ
FT U BR ) 7 B © 32T & & 8 Bh
B B K BB R SR R
S DAREBEH R AN R AR
MiEE - MBI A&
EfEESHEMBHTEHE -
THESEHEARIMNEET
B - RZEB-Z=F=A=+—
B EERFHE RN KR
R IR AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 Z—F—

10.

—ME=A=t+—RALLFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geographical delineation. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management, being the Directors, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

Continuing operations

- the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment represents
the business of the leasing of the Port and Storage Facilities
located in Shandong Province, the PRC and owned by
Shundong Port, and provision of agency services and
trading of oil and liquefied chemical products.

Discontinued operation

- the Insurance Brokerage Service segment represents the
business of providing insurance brokerage service in Hong
Kong. This segment was discontinued during the year
ended 31 March 2024. Details are explained in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Reportable segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of certain property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, financial assets at FVTPL
and other corporate assets. Reportable segment liabilities include all
liabilities with the exception of other borrowings, promissory notes,
tax payables, certain lease liabilities and other corporate liabilities.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is earnings before
interest and income taxes. For the purpose of assessment by the
Directors, the finance costs of bank borrowings, other borrowings
and lease liabilities were not included in segment results while
certain of the corresponding liabilities have been included in the
segment liabilities.

Customers from Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal and Oil
Production segments are located in the PRC (place of domicile)
whereas customers from insurance brokerage service segment
are located in Hong Kong. Geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the goods are delivered and the
contracts are negotiated and entered into with the customers.
No geographical location of non-current assets is presented as
substantial non-current assets are physically based in the PRC.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 2023 is set out below:

10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. Z7EEH @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: BRAMENBEENER :
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
HELSEEK BRIESEER
Oil and
Liquefied Insurance
Chemical Brokerage
Terminal Service Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hm R
BECIRER REBRLRE @t
TER TER TR
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE-Z-_ME=A=1+-A
JJ:EIEE
Revenue from external customers 5%5 BN P 2 e 242,234 1" 242,245
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RESBEEF,/ (BR) 142,090 (252) 141,838
Amounts included in the measure of %’/M PR EL SR
segment profit or loss:
Interest revenue ke 2,716 - 2,716
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BERSETE
equipment (1,581) - (1,581)
Fair value gain on investment properties &% KA FEYZ 17,038 - 17,038
Fair value loss on preferred shares BERRATEERE (20,780) - (20,780)
Reversal of impairment loss under expected Z 5 fE 4 B 7 & FE R A &
credit loss model on trade and lease RERBHEEEREAT
receivables, net AEREREFE 9,361 - 9,361
Reversal of impairment loss under expected %% 4 [ Kt JEUR BN FEHIE &
credit loss model on deposit and other — EBEER T 2 EEEER
receivables, net F 335 - 335
Amounts not included in the measure  ITEHA S EEF ()i E
of segment profit/loss) but regularly EEHREEHREL 25 -
reported to Directors:
Interest expense on: THIBEHOF SR :
— bank and other borrowings —RITREMER (8,192) = (8,192)
- lease liabilities -HEBRE (20) - (20)
(8,212) = (8,212)
Income tax expenses ERAZ (27,393) - (27,393)
As at 31 March 2024 E-NE=ZA=+-A
Segment assets ) *Eéflx 2,118,778 - 2,118,778
Additions to non-current assets FRERYEERE
during the year 14,176 - 14,176
Segment liabilities AHERE (793,288) - (793,288)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 2EER @
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
SEEEES BRIHE=%H
QOil and
Liquefied Insurance
Chemical Brokerage
Terminal Service Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R
BELCTRIEE R L RS @
AT THL TAT
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZ-_T-=%=H=1-H
LEE
Revenue from external customers RENIEP 2 Y 366,757 13 366,770
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RESEER/ (BE) 125,268 (520) 124,748
Amounts included in the measure of AAD BRI EZ 25 -
segment profit or loss:
Interest revenue Fl Bz 78 - 78
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERRERE
equipment (481) - (481)
Fair value gain on investment properties % &M EM AT ENRE 12,964 - 12,964
Fair value loss on preferred shares BERLTEER (19,453) - (19,453)

Impairment loss under expected credit loss Z 5 & Uk 5 12 fE I f &
model on trade and lease receivables, net FENEHEEFEER T2
WEEEFE (3,911 - (3.911)
Impairment loss under expected credit loss $2& & E i€ W FIER B EE
model on deposit and other receivables,  EEER T 2 HEBEFE

net (334) - (334)
Amounts not included in the measure  HEBA S EEF ()i E

of segment profit/loss) but regularly BTHHEEREZ 25 -

reported to Directors:
Interest expense on: THEEMFHSHAY :

- bank and other borrowings —SBIREMER (13,554) - (13,554)

~ lease liabilities -HEBR (16) - (16)

(13,570) - (13,570)

Income tax expenses FERR% (26,889) - (26,889)
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=F=ZA=+-H
Segment assets NEAE 1,923,232 56 1,923,288
Additions to non-current assets FRERHEERE

during the year 15,159 - 15,159
Segment liabilities SREE (785,001) ) (785,003)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

10.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets,

liabilities and other items:

Revenue

There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the years

ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

No reconciliation of reportable and operating segment revenue
is provided as the total revenue for reportable and operating
segments is the same as Group’s consolidated revenue.

HES WG Bm BE BENIHEM
BB Z 8k

REBEE2-_ZT_NFER_ZT_=ZF=ZA
=+—HIFE  MESERHEERER -

MR HmEREED RRRREAREESZS
W AR MW AR HIBE REE DR
2 $BR -

Profit or loss B&
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
“E-WEF —ET-=fF
F#ExT FHBT
(g E3)
Total profit of reportable segments WEDERRT 141,838 124,748
Finance costs B 75 B AR (8,921) (16,455)
Other unallocated corporate income/ Hib Rk pBEAERA S
(expenses): (FA) :
— Interest revenue —F B = 779 3,905
— Administrative expenses —{THAX (13,677) (18,876)
— Reversal of impairment loss under — e REMEWFIE
expected credit loss model on deposits RIEHEEBEREAT
and other receivables, net OB EBEREEE 3,590 2,123
— Net gain on derecognition of financial — IRV BEER
assets and liabilities BEzKEFE - 63,010
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEWB QR Z ke 422 1,955
— Fair value loss on financial assets at — RN FEFAERZ
FVTPL, net MBEEQTE
B 1R HFR (2,307) (7,753)
Fair value loss on promissory notes AR EERNFEER - (524)
Other corporate income less other corporate  E b b Z U AR E %5 2
expenses 906 1,019
Consolidated profit before income tax for FRBRATSBATAR & m Fl
the year 122,630 153,152
Less: (Profit)/loss before income tax from W BRI RS
discontinued operation (note 14(a)) (M 3E 14(a)) Z BR T8 B Bl
CaF) i (170) 520
Consolidated profit before income tax for BEREEHK TN
the year from continuing operations R P45 258 Al 47 & O A 122,460 153,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

RERERREZRERAT / —T=

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 2EER @
Assets BE
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'OOO
—E_ME —T=F
FERT FHET
Reportable segment assets REDEEE 2,118,778 1,923,288
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 3,703 1,033
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEGF ARGV B EE 10,630 12,937
Other unallocated corporate assets: HthRDBEEEE -
— Property, plant and equipment —M%E - BEREE 1,065 15
— Prepayments, deposits and other —TENRIE - e K HA
receivables FEUFRIR 4,592 60,195
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRkREEEIEE 25,900 1,333
31,557 61,543
Consolidated total assets RAEREE 2,164,668 1,998,801
Liabilities 8E
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-WEF —EC=F
F#& T FAT
Reportable segment liabilities mEDEARE 793,288 785,003
Other borrowings H At {8 5% - 10,652
Promissory notes A= - 5,138
Tax payables e RLIE 3,656 3,858
Other unallocated corporate liabilities: Hith KD BEEEEARE:
— Trade and other payables —B S EMNERR
H{th 5 OB 9,895 19,962
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 3,766 1,049
13,661 21,011
Consolidated total liabilities ABAaR 810,605 825,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z—Z—NF=A=+—HBItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. Z7EEH @
Other items HhE R
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ME —T=F
FHET FAT
Interest revenue F 2k 2=
Reportable segment total WMENRREE 2,716 78
Other corporate interest revenue HAh b2 A B e 779 3,905
Consolidated total frame 3,495 3,983
Depreciation of property, plant and E BRERRENE
equipment
Reportable segment total WmE D AR (1,581) (481)
Other corporate depreciation of property, HMPEEME  BER
plant and equipment RETE (50) (17)
Consolidated total e (1,631) (498)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment Z& R HtEKWRBEBRBLRE
loss) under expected credit loss model EFEEXTZRERE
on deposits and other receivables, net @~ CREKE) FHE
Reportable segment total WMENEREE 335 (334)
Other corporate reversal of impairment loss £ i 1> 3 )3l (B /&5 18 ¢ 3] 3,590 2,123
Consolidated total RERE 3,925 1,789
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 7 EE&ER @)
Revenue from major customers: REFERP 2 :
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
Sl - 3 == ==
FHET FET
Derived From Oil and Liquefied FIRF o BB T

Chemical Terminal segment: SRS 4R

— Customer A —2FA 127,230 157,472

— Customer B —%FB 31,308 =

— Customer C =E2EI(C 78,091 135,077

— Customer D —%FD - 66,146

236,629 358,695
FINANCE COSTS 1. BB
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-MF —TEo=%F
FBT FET
Continuing operations IFESERER
Interest on bank and other R1T R H A fE K F 2

borrowings 8,658 14,270
Interest on promissory notes AR TS (F3E32)

(note 32) 84 1,877
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 179 308
Interest expense on financial liabilities I 3EiZ A FEFABEZNH B EE

not at FVTPL FERX 8,921 16,455
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FiEHRAX
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ECoME .
FER FHAT
Current tax o HARL 18
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — B TR
(TEEMmER]) - -
Deferred tax — PRC RFEFIE —

— Current year (note 33) —ANEE (FFEE33) 27,393 26,889
Income tax expenses Frsfims 27,393 26,889
Income tax expenses attributable to: THEEIEERASE

— Continuing operations — R EE 27,393 26,889

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group
has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

Pursuant to rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, BVI and
Independent State of Samoa (“Samoa”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands, BVI and Samoa.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC (the “PRC EIT Law") and Regulation
Implementation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group is 25% for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law and other related regulations, PRC,
non-PRC resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10%, 6%
and various tax rate (unless reduced by tax treaties/arrangements)
respectively on interest receivable from PRC enterprises for income
earned since 1 January 2008. The Group has adopted withholding
tax rate of 10%, 6% and various tax rate on corporate income tax,
value-added tax and other taxes for PRC withholding tax purpose
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023/24

HRAEERHE T - MEL T~ =
FZA=+—RIEFETEERTGN
WHARE BN ST R EE -

RERSHS RBRAHBENEEDE
B ([EEE])HPEREBRG - AEEH
ARHERS RBRAHBENEETH
HERFTSHE ©

RIEBEFREPEMSHE((RREEMEH
EDREEMSRETRIEN  BE=

ZHERZEZ=F=A=F+—HILFE "
REBMFTEMBRARZHER25% °

R P B 1 2 TS B 0% I b B L fh AR B fi
fl- BT NE—A—B#  FEPEHEF
R4 2 78 3t AT B B A B U AR B 1 2 1 F
BARR10% « 6% R ZEARRER (RIE
TG R ZHEEL T AR IN) B TE
M- N2 ZE_FEER T -_=F=
AZ+—BLEE AEEREHTEE
MEBFEA10% 6% X ZEAR KRR A
S BERREMBIENTENRE -



12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 12.

The reconciliation between the income tax expenses and profit/(loss)

before income tax is as follows:

RE®EX @)

TS BB X R PTG B AR M, (B518) 2

SRR

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ECNE —E=F
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax expenses TH)E EIEBRATEBIFA X
attributable to: AR R, (E8)
— Continuing operations —RBELEER 122,460 153,672
— Discontinued operation —EBRIEEEER 170 (520)
122,630 153,152
Tax at the applicable rate to profit/(loss) RIBAB G AR BERR
in the tax jurisdictions concerned wH (B8 2 HERTE 2
IR 32,058 35,548
Tax effect of non-taxable income HERBBA BT L (769) (12,511)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PRI A S 2 B 2 1,649 3,375
Tax effect of deductible temporary KRR LR ERER
differences not recognised D% (15) (53)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RIER AR 2 B 5 2 1,873 2,081
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss PHACDAEDIEEEN
brought forward k% (7,403) (1,551)
Income tax expenses FRSHiR 27,393 26,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FREF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEBFERNREFENER GIA) A TEE
the following: 237 :
2024
—E-mE
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEKSEEYR CRIELEXER E Y
FER FER TET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR % B 1,000 - 1,000
Carrying amount of EEGFECZEREE
inventories sold 77,463 - 77,463
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - BiE kBT E
and equipment 1,631 - 1,631
Depreciation of right-of-use CRAEEETNE
assets 2,558 - 2,558
Gross rental income from REYEMSWALRTE
investment properties (164,143) - (164,143)

Direct operating expenses arising E4EM S KA ZREWE
from investment properties that EA MW EELEH Y

generated rental income 5,735 - 5,735
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WE &
plant and equipment RiEEE 7 - 7
Staff costs (including BIXRAK(BEEEHM)
Directors’ remuneration)
— Salaries, bonuses and — % - fEALROERL
allowances 14,507 240 14,747
— Retirement benefit —RREFIFT IR
scheme contributions 548 9 557
15,055 249 15,304
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 13. FREA @
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) REBFNREFLENEGIA) U TEE
the following: (Continued) 1BHR : (&)
2023
—E-=%
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIEEELE BRIEKEEER st
FHET FHT FH&T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 B 37 BA 1,000 = 1,000
Carrying amount of EEFECHREE
inventories sold 200,779 - 200,779
Depreciation of property, plant — #12% - BB k& #EiTE
and equipment 498 - 498
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets 3,485 - 3,485
Gross rental income from REYEHSWALLRE
investment properties (157,472) - (157,472)
Direct operating expenses arising EEMHE WA ZREME
from investment properties that E4AMEELEH S
generated rental income 2,137 - 2,137
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE K
plant and equipment HEEE 11 - 11
Staff costs (including EINA(BREESZHH)
Directors’ remuneration)
— Salaries, bonuses and —Fd A RERM
allowances 12,052 511 12,563
— Retirement benefit —RUREFIET B3R
scheme contributions 486 18 504
12,538 529 13,067
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

The Group had no forfeited contributions under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) and its retirement
benefits schemes in the PRC which may be used to reduce the
existing level of contributions during the year ended 31 March 2024
(2023: Nil). There were also no forfeited contributions available to
reduce future contributions at the end of the reporting period (2023:
Nil).

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
retirement benefits scheme contributions charged to profit or loss
represent contributions paid or payable by the Group to the scheme
at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly relevant income capped
at HK$30,000 per month.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary established in the PRC is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contribution as stated above.
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 9 October 2023, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with the independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire
and the Group has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
shares of iECO Financial Consulting Limited (“iECO Financial”) at a
total consideration of approximately HK$ 1,162,000 (the “Disposal”).
iIECO Financial is principally engaged in the provision of Insurance
Brokerage Service in Hong Kong.

The Disposal was completed on 12 October 2023 (the “Disposal
Date”). The Disposal constitutes a discontinued operation under
HKFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, as the provision of Insurance Brokerage Service
represented one of the reportable segments of the Group.

Financial information relating to the discontinued operation for the
period from 1 April 2023 to 12 October 2023 and the year ended
31 March 2023 and comparative information is set out below.

(@) Financial performance of discontinued

14.

ERIEREXEE

RZFEZ=F+ANE  ANEBERBFIE
=H(TEFDIVEE R BILEFE
BHERBEREMASEEGRERELEZL
SEVERERAR ([EEH]) N2
BEEITRG - BRERK1,162,000% T
(HEFE]) - ESBHEERERNER
RERER LA IRTS

HEEFEER-Z_=F+A+=-R(H
EHH]) TR - AR IRERBELRE A
AEENFESEZ — REBBVBR
EEANESRAFIELEZ R EERE
ARIPAEERD  PEFHEBRERIELE
E§

N-ZZE—=FNA—HE=Z=-_=1+A
ToAMREBE S =F=A="1—
ALFERAEE RIS EEBNTHER
M BRI T o

(a) EBRIEEEXBINE

operation E3: )
For the period
from 1 April For the year
2023 to ended
12 October 31 March
2023 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—=%
WMA—HZ HBE-T-=%F
—E-=4F —A=+—H
+ A+ =B HArd WHFE
FHET FHET
Revenue Wz 11 13
Other income E U A - 24
Administrative expenses THAX (263) (557)
Loss before income tax B PTIS T AT BT 18 (252) (520)
Income tax expenses P15 % 2 - -
Loss for the period/year B F A EE (252) (520)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — BB QR 2 s
(note 14(b)) (M5 14(b)) 422 -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation £ 4% [F 48 & 27~
w A, (E18) 170 (520)
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
(b)

14. BERUIEREXEE &)

Disposal of a subsidiary (b) HE—REKHEAFE
At the
Disposal Date
REE B A
HK$'000
FHBT

Net assets disposed of Frit &2 BEFE

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TERTFRIE - 12e REMERFIER 8
Bank balances RITHETT 392
400
Direct expenses incurred FEECEERY 340
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHMB ARz W& 422
Total consideration BRE 1,162

An analysis of the net cash flow arising on disposal of a

subsidiary was as follows:

HE-—BHNBARELEZRERE
ST

HK$'000

FHBT

Cash consideration ReENE 1,162

Direct expenses incurred FIEAEERY (340)

Bank balances disposed of & 2 R1T46T (392)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMBRARELEZRERA

FHE 430

No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of the

discontinued operation.

Cash flow information of discontinued
operation

(9]

BEALED R IEREEH W
EERAXHHER -

DRIEEEB BN
EuH

For the period
from 1 April 2023
to 12 October 2023

(9]

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

RZE-=4F
mMA—H BE_T_=F
BT =F —A=+—H
+ A+ - B IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Net cash outflow from operating activities 4% & &8 & 7t HJF 48 (252) (515)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KREEHRSMAFRE - .
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEHRSRAFRE 597 127
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash T e RkEeS
equivalents of [ECO Financial AEBEM, Chd)
R 345 (388)
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2023:
Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16.

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the following profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
Company and weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding.

iz =

HE_Z-_NWF=A=+—HLFE I
ERARR L ARBRRIRTHEZRRE
BREHRETERZTARE (ZF
T=FE ) o

BREF(BE)
(@) BREXRER(HE)
SREKRT, (R HDRET

FIRANRIGER ARERF, (BER)
NEITHEINE B IE PO BETE -

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
11 S —EC=F
Earnings/(loss) BF, (EE8) FET FAET
(gg&E)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable XA G #EH A E(RF W@ Fl,~
to owners of the Company: (E18) -
— Continuing operations —BELEER 51,820 89,828
— Discontinued operation — BRI EET 170 (520)
51,990 89,308
‘000 ‘000
Number of shares RHEE F & TR
Weighted average number of AU ESRERRF,
ordinary shares for the purpose (E18) 2 LAk N T 192
of basic earnings/(loss) per share 932,038 720,563

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023 were the same as the basic earnings/
(loss) per share, as the Company has no potential dilutive
ordinary shares.

(b) EREBERR(FE)

HE_Z-_NFEFERZFTZ=F
“A=+t-—B8LEE Fh#EE
B,/ (BB BREREXRAT,
(E18) R - DRERARR GBS ET
g EamaR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

17. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 17. EEM<E
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the BB E B QA RH £ 383(1) 1E k&l (#
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEENRER) ROIE2MKENES
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation BT -

are as follow:

For the year ended 31 March 2024: BE-_Z_MF=A=1+—-HLEFE:
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’  and benefits benefit
fees in kind schemes Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2 RIEA
Note &0k REWEF AT AR @t
BisE THET TR TR THER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cao Sheng BERELAE - 360 18 378
Mr. Liu Yong BIELAE - 1,672 46 1,718
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BREELE - 700 18 718
Mr. Lan Yonggiang KA - 240 12 252
Mr. Shi Jun RELE - 240 - 240
Mr. Luo Yingnan BEBEE (i) - 238 - 238
Independent non-executive BIUHTES
Directors
Mr. Tang Qingbin EEREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wang Jinghua FREELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BEILEE 144 - - 144
Total i 324 3,450 94 3,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 17. ESME @
For the year ended 31 March 2023: HE_Z_=F=A=+—HILFE:
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefit
fees in kind schemes Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E =11 RKEF
Notes BN REMEH BRI et
Lags FTET TAET FTAT FHET
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cao Sheng BREE (ii) - 355 18 373
Mr. Liu Yong BB %4 (i) - 1,487 2 1,509
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral REBx4E - 1,032 18 1,050
Mr. Lan Yonggiang Ekais (iv) - 267 13 280
Mr. Shi Jun RERE (v) - 236 - 236
Mr. Yu Zhiyong FTEBELEAE (vi) - 1 - 1
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Tang Qingbin EEMEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wang Jinghua FTRERAE 60 - - 60
Mr. Fung Nam Shan Sl ks 144 - - 144
Total @ 324 3,378 71 3,773
Notes: M
(i) Appointed as the executive Director with effect from 4 April 2023. (i) BT _=FHANBREEZERNT

(i) Appointed as the Chairman with effect from 7 April 2022.
(iii) Appointed as the executive Director and chief executive officer with

effect from 7 April 2022.

(iv) Ceased as the Chairman with effect from 7 April 2022.
(v) Appointed as the executive Director with effect from 7 April 2022.

(vi) Resigned with effect from 7 April 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was arrangement
under which one Director (2023: two Directors) waived or agreed to
waive emoluments with total amount of approximately HK$600,000

(2023: HK$606,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil).

B
(i) B-Z-_—FMA+HBREZEAER °
(iii) B -_—_FNAtHREZT AT
BEERITHMAE -
(iv) B-Z-_—FNAtBRBRTHBAERE-
(v) B -_—FNAtHREZT AT
B
(vi) BT —FMAEHEEIT -

BHE-_Z-_NFE=A=+—HItFEE A
—HREE(CE_=F WMBEE)MER
[{ = R E B € 4258 47600,0008 7T (=
— =% :606,000/E7T) 2L HE -

HE-_Z-_NEFZA=+—HIFEE &
SEVERNESINEAMSIEAMAR
MAREEEHRBEI S IEABERBE (=
TF ) e

RREBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZWNEFR

147



148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

18.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two Directors
(2023: two Directors) whose emoluments are disclosed in note 17.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
individuals (2023: three individuals) were as follows:

18.

REFHMAL

hAEERTMHALTHR MEBEES(ZF
T MEBES) MHMRKE1THE -
HE=BAL(ZTE_=F: =5A1)2
B & BEEa T

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-MF —T-=F

FET FET

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - EAROERL 3,037 2,247
Contributions to retirement benefit RREFFT B 3R

schemes 85 36

3,122 2,283

The emoluments of three individuals (2023: three individuals) with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ZHR(ZEBE=F ZR)REaFMAL
e FATHE

2024 2023

Number of Number of

employees employees

—E-MEF R —F

EEAH BB A8

Below HK$1,000,000 T~ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 78 T 2 -

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 19. V¥ BERIKEREAEE
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS =3
(a) Property, plant and equipment () Y% BERRE
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture,
office
equipment
and motor
vehicles
HK$'000
HEWME
2w M-
MARE
NAE
AT
At 1 April 2022 R=-TB--_FMA—H
Cost PN 7,914
Accumulated depreciation REtine (6,912)
Carrying amount BREE 1,002
At 1 April 2022, net of accumulated R-ZB--_FM™A—H"
depreciation HNKRETHITE 1,002
Additions NE 5,237
Exchange differences W =5 (78)
Depreciation e (498)
Disposal & (11)
At 31 March 2023, net of accumulated R-ZBE-=fF=ZH=+—H"
depreciation MR EHITE 5,652
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZE-_==ZHA=+—H
Cost PN 12,819
Accumulated depreciation RETHE (7,167)
Carrying amount BREE 5,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 19. V% BERIKBREAEE
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) = (&)
(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (@) % BERRE @)
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture,
office
equipment
and motor
vehicles
HK$'000
HEWE
®1& - FH
LN
kA=
FET
At 1 April 2023, net of accumulated R-B-=FMA—H"
depreciation HNKRETHITE 5,652
Additions = 1,925
Exchange differences EHZR (287)
Depreciation e (1,631)
Disposal & (36)
At 31 March 2024, net of accumulated R-ZBE-ME=Z/A=+—8"
depreciation HBRRFITE 5,623
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZB-mE=ZA=+—H
Cost DN 14,019
Accumulated depreciation REtih e (8,396)
Carrying amount FREE 5,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

EHEEE

19. V¥ BERREREARE
=)

Leased properties

HEWE
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBonNEF —E=%F
F#ET FAT
Carrying value BREE 3,703 1,033
Depreciation charge TEEHR 2,558 3,485

The analysis of expenses items in relation to lease recognised

RERAERNEERMME<ER

in profit or loss is as follows: ST
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
11 S —EC=F
FHE T FHET
Total cash outflow for leases (note) MEReRmLEE (M) (2,796) (3,713)
Addition to right-of-use assets ANETREEE 5,228 -

Note:  Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion
of lease liabilities, short-term leases and payments of lease
payments on or before lease commencement date. These
amounts was presented in operating or financing cash
flows.

The Group leases various office premises. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods of 2 years (2023: 2
years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and
the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Mz HEESEeENEERG AN
HZAMEERELAS RAE

oMK

IR E R Rl

ENHRFHIE - ZERBEREE

IRERSREZT -

AEBEHEZERLENE - HE
BE-REERBA_F (T _=

F:2F) MEH

Ty {8 Rl &

EEITIER - B ZETR M EK
K fgett - HE B BT ER R
4 BHEHEBETSAERERE

opakii iy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20. REME

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’'000
—E-MF .
FER FHAT

FAIR VALUE DEE
At beginning of year REH] 1,565,499 1,666,170
Additions NE 7,023 9,922
Fair value adjustment NEEHAE 17,038 12,964
Exchange adjustments ME H SR (82,163) (123,557)
At end of year RER 1,507,397 1,565,499

The investment properties held by the Group represents the oil and
liquefied chemical terminal located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 0.58 to 5 years (2023:
2.38 years), All leases are on a fixed rental basis and do not include
variable lease payments.

The investment properties have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings (note 28) as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

The details of fair value measurement of investment properties are
set out in note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

21, BHE

HK$'000
TATT

Cost
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary (note 14(b))

At 31 March 2024

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary (note 14(b))

At 31 March 2024

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

2%

RZZE-_—FMA—AH -

—E-_=F=A=+—HK

—E-_=FMA—H 1,440
RS —EWE A A (M FE 14(b)) B 2 84 (1,440)

R-ZE-_WME=A=+—H =

Rt EEEE

RZZTZ=—FMA—AH -

—E-=F=ZA=+—HK

T A—H 1,440
RHEE B AR (WiE140)) ¥ 85 (1,440)

RZZE_WMF=A=+—H -

IREE
RZE-_WME=Z/A=+—H -

RZE_=F=A=+—H -

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit
from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill
had been allocated to Insurance Brokerage Service segment (the
“Insurance CGU").

In year 2019, the financial performance of the Insurance CGU,
as a consequence of the intense competition from surrounding
competitors in the market, did not meet Directors’ expectations.
The Directors performed impairment assessments of the Insurance
CGU to which goodwill had been allocated.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the goodwill was
derecognised upon disposal of iECO Financial (see note 14), which
represented solely the Insurance CGU.

EBAHTRENRERKEROREER
HIR XS A P ENINR S EL B -
FENKREED D EERBELIRE DR
(IMrRBRREELEM]) -

R-F-NF ARMSLARREFHTF
MARNEF  RRASELEUNMBTR
BANAEFAN BEFCHERESEKRD
BRI EEEMETRERG -

HE-_Z-_NF=A=+—HIFE &
B2EREEZSEY (RHFE14) BRI
R EEERBRIRSEEREM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

22.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVOCI

Reference to the announcement of the Company dated 21 October
2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement with an independent third party to purchase
the entire interests in Ever Rosy Ventures Limited (the “Ever Rosy"”)
for a consideration of nominal value of RMB224 million which shall
be settled by way of issuance of promissory notes by the Company
(the “Promissory Note A”) (note 32). The investment essentially
represents 28% of effective interest in Tai'an Wanyue's property
development business.

After completion, the financial and operational performance of
Tai'an Wanyue was under-performed as compared to the Group’s
expectation, as the property project experienced construction delay
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Without proceeding to
completion and pre-sales to the extent and timetable as scheduled,
the dividend income expected to be derived by the Group from
Tai'an Wanyue was not materialised. In September 2021, the
Group commenced legal action in the High Court of Hong Kong
against (inter alia) the vendor (the “Litigation”) to apply for (inter
alia) an order to have the acquisition agreement set aside and any
consideration already paid to be fully refunded.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the vendor surrendered the
promissory notes in the aggregate face value of RMB110,500,000 to
the Group for cancellation, which discharged the Group’s liabilities
in the amount of HK$128,048,000. Furthermore, a settlement
disposal (the “Settlement Disposal”) and a supplemental settlement
disposal (the “Supplemental Settlement Disposal”) were reached
between the Group and the vendor for the settlement of remaining
balance of RMB113,500,000 and accrued interest of approximately
RMB3,383,000. As at 31 March 2023, the vendor repaid
RMB63,500,000 (or equivalent to approximately HK$73,334,000
to the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the vendor
repaid the remaining balance at an aggregate sum of approximately
RMB53,383,000 (or equivalent to approximately HK$58,385,000)
to the Group.
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

Fal= by E S B kS

“HE=ZA=1+—HLLFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVOCI (continued) 22. BRAFEFAHMBZEKRA
Wiz T A
Upon the surrender of promissory notes by the vendor to the REARAEEREANERE  BRA
Group, and reaching the Settlement Proposal between the Group SEEEFERMBARRE  AEEKIE
and the vendor, the Group derecognised the equity instruments BRIZATEFAEMEZERKAZEZT
at FVOCI, the Promissory Notes A-i, A-iii and A-iv (as defined in B A EE A Al RA-V(EE R
note 32), resulting a net gain of approximately HK$63,010,000 32) BYRBE_ZT-_=F=A=+-—
recognised in the consolidated income statement during the year AILFREERE BaRAERK G FEEL
ended 31 March 2023. In addition, FVOCI reserve of approximately 63,010,000 7T » bbAN - A FEEAHE
HK$28,274,000 was released and transferred to retained earnings. 2 TE U R 5 49 28,274,000 78 T & JE 7
BRIEBRZREBEF -
Further details of the Litigation, the adjustment of consideration, HA - REAE NMBEARRFEERNES
the Settlement Proposal and the Supplemental Settlement Proposal ES E’]L —FSHBHRARABHS R B
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 17 June ZEZZERA+TER  ZEZZFKA
2022, 24 June 2022 and 29 March 2023 respectively and in the ZHHBERZTE=F=A=Z1+NAAEHA
Company's 2022/2023 annual report. HBREARNB T /T =FFRo
TRADE AND LEASE RECEIVABLES 23. %%BE W AR X FE A & K
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mE —E-=F
FERT FHET
From independent third parties, net of loss REBILE=T (NRERE
allowance )
— Trade receivables from contracts —REBEFPAHNZESD
with customers FEUBR 7R 149 163,437
— Lease receivables —JEW A E kB 39,738 26,901
39,887 190,338

As at 1 April 2022, trade receivables from contracts with customers
net of allowance for credit losses amounted to approximately
HK$155,635,000.

The Group normally allows a credit period up to 90 days to its
established customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
For certain customers with good past repayment history, a longer
credit period may be granted. Trade receivables are non-interest
bearing. All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

RERERREZRERAT / —T=

RIBE-_HOA—H RBFEFAHZ
HHRWER (NMBEEEBERER) AH
155,635,000 % 7T, ©

AEEBERAHEEFREMH&EZ AN
EEH ZSEPRBEELR -RETEA
ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmzﬁﬁa~7ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RWEEH -BHRWERARE - it
%ﬁ%%ﬁ%% KGR — E R U e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

23.

TRADE AND LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
and lease receivables based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follow:

23.

EFEWRREERBER
I8 (1)

REREHR  EREZE MR EERE
HEE 5 M BR 7 K JE ULFE & B M BR I
DHTEF AT

2024 2023

HK$°000 HK$'000

ZE-QNEF —E_=F

FHET FET

0-90 days 0ZE 90K 31,187 164,538
91-180 days 91 £ 180K 8,551 25,605
181-365 days 181 £ 365K - 195
Over 365 days 365 KA 149 -
39,887 190,338

As at the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade and
lease receivables that were past due but not impaired, based on

R|EHKR  EEHERBEENE S EK
RS EW S FIEER B B EH D17

past due date, are as follows: wmr
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ME =
FET FHT
0-30 days past due #HI0-30 B 8,551 25,605
Over 90 days past due BEI90 H A = 149 195
8,700 25,800

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances. Details of the Group’s credit policy
and impairment assessment on trade and lease receivables for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 are set out in note 6(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FENRIE  RERHMEWK

RECEIVABLES |
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E_MF —_T-=
FET FHT
Current BOHA

Prepayments for repair and maintenance (note ii) 418 & 4 +& 2 8 08 (M aEii) = 57,135
Sundry prepayments TR HEIR 5,683 6,791
Deposits Ze 778 724
Advances to staff BRFET 1 153
Value-added tax (“VAT") receivables (note i) YU ER ([HEER]) (D) 90 12,642
Other receivables H b U 3kI18 154 1,804
Receivables from recession of contract (note iii) &R & %9 2 FEUL T I8 (B 5T iii) = 61,001
6,706 140,250

Notes:

@

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 March 2024, other receivables comprise of VAT
recoverables of approximately HK$90,000 (2023: HK$12,642,000)
which will be used to offset output VAT within one year and hence
is accounted for as a current asset.

As at 31 March 2023, the prepayment of approximately
HK$57,135,000 was made to an independent third party for the
purpose of repair and maintenance of the Group's investment
properties in the PRC. During the year ended 31 March 2024, upon
entering a long-term lease agreement with the present operator of
the Port and Storage Facilities, the repair and maintenance work
was ceased, and the said prepayment was fully refunded by the
counterparty.

As at 31 March 2023, the entire shares of Ever Rosy were pledged
in favour of the Group to secure the receivable of approximately
HK$61,001,000. Details of the pledge are stated in note 22.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the amount was fully repaid
by the counterparty in accordance with the repayment timetable set
forth in the Supplemental Settlement Proposal (see note 22).

Details of impairment assessment on deposits and other receivables

are set out in note 6(a).

i

(i) R-E-WE=A=+—H "  HEK
I8 B3 ] U (5] 3 {E F 4990,000 7 7T
(ZZFE =4 12,642,000/ 7T) * £
AREE—FNHEEIGAETR - FIs R
BREEE °

(i) WN-_ZE-_=(=fF=+—8 BNZHEA
#957,135,000 8 T I BE4EE R E AR &
ERRBENEEMENR—ZBILE=
HEH - BE_ZT_WMF=A=+—H
IEEFE - REEORFEFEREHIRES
BRIV RPHERRE  Biekfd
TEBRILE MERBNREEHEF
T EERE -

(iii) RZZE-_=ZF=ZA=Z+—H kg
Al E2HBRHCEAERREY
61,001,000/ T ER T E 18 F A &%
E o BB RNFBRNIE22

HE-Z-_NFZA=1+—HILFE "
ZeEEO REF A REBHE MG S RA
HENGERBHEE (RHE22) -

me MHEMEEFIAZREF EFFRR
ffsE6(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 25. BATEFABGZHMEBE
E
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-MEF —E=F
FET FHET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB ETMHERES -
at fair value EAFE 10,630 12,937
The above financial assets are classified as current as the LB EESBARDEE  EREE
management expects to realise these financial assets within twelve BN HEBMEE T @A NEIRZ
months after the reporting period. EMBEE °
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. RekREeEHEEH
Cash and cash equivalents comprised of: RehREFEEE B
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-NE = e o
FET FHET
Time deposits with original maturity not REIBAE BB =EAN
over three months EHTF R 465,647 -
Cash at banks RITRE 125,075 83,092
590,722 83,092

At 31 March 2024, time deposits with original maturity not over
three months from the date of acquisition carried interest at
prevailing market rate of 1.3% (2023: N/A) per annum.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

At 31 March 2024, conversion of approximately HK$564,880,000
(2023: approximately HK$81,779,000) into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group performed impairment
assessment on time deposits and bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided.
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BHRRNE

OTHER PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

27. HtEMAFIR

“HE=ZA=1+—HLLFE

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-MEF —E-=F
FERT FHET
Current RED

Construction cost payables FERT SRR AR 19,244 27,741
Amounts due to shareholders (note) FE A IR R R IE (P aE) = 6,995
Amounts due to Directors (note) FEEEFHRIE (5E) 3,003 820
Other tax payables H e R IR 4,556 3,676
Receipts in advance on rental income FERA WA 1,177 =
Rental deposits received BHEZRS 1,083 =
Other deposits received B HMIZS 4 4
Accruals J& =t 3R 6,274 9,617
Other payables H e 5108 4,327 5,911
39,668 54,764

Non-current IR E
Rental deposit received BEERZS 10,396 -

Note:  These are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

All current portion of other payables are expected to be settled or

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

MisE: ZEREAERN 2L RERERER

H Al AR

B P B R B D FEHI R —

FRNEESERWRATERIIZEREE

RREBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZWNEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS

28. SRITER

The Group’s bank borrowings are analysed as follows:

AREBHRITERDHTAT

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-@OmEF ZT=F
FET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: ERMER:
- secured — B 140,777 154,265
— unsecured and guaranteed by independent —EERRBBIE=ZFER
third parties 19,492 20,569
160,269 174,834
Carrying amount repayable:* JEEEERME(E « *
— Within one year —-R—FR 19,492 -
— After one year but within two years ——FREMFEA - 20,569
19,492 20,569
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that BERERERERZ
contain a repayment on demand clause RATEREREE (BRR
(shown under current liabilities) MEAE)
— Repayable on demand —RERER 140,777 154,265
160,269 174,834
Less: Amounts due within one year and shown & : I —FE R E|HIXL 71 &
under current liabilities MBBECHIE (160,269) (154,265)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities P RIERE B EZRIB - 20,569
Interest rate F & 4.8%-4.9% 4.8%-4.9%
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out IMeEIRBERANERBEZBEER

in the loan agreements.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B EZ =%

Fal= by E S B kS

“HE=ZA=1+—HLLFE

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 28. RITER @)
At 31 March 2023, all of the non-current portion of bank RZZE_=F=ZA=+—H " RITERH
borrowings were carried at amortised cost. None of the non-current FrB IEm BN 2B D PR B SH A AR AR o B
portion of bank borrowings was expected to be settled within one EMBIRITERTERABR —FRNIBE -
year.
The following assets and their respective carrying values as at the TIEBERESEBZEEERRER KD
end of the reporting period are pledged to secure the Group's WA LAEE RS E G EPRITER -
secured bank borrowings:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF _”__E
Investment properties (note 20) wEME (M320) 1,507,397 1,565,499
OTHER BORROWINGS 29. H@ER
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-MEF B
FERT FHET
Unsecured fixed rate other borrowings T B A E R - 10,652
Carrying amount repayable:* [EEEREE : *

— After two years but within five years —MERERFRA - 10,652
Amount shown under non-current liabilities IARIEREBE 2 KIA - 10,652
Interest rate A= - 7%
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out * FMeEIRBEHNER HEEEE

in the loan agreements. HBEEE -
At 31 March 2023, all of the non-current portion of other RZE-_=F=A=+—H FIBFELH
borrowings were carried at amortised cost. None of the non-current EMEFIIREBEEKAAR - BEIERE
portion of other borrowings was expected to be settled within one HEMERFERAER—FREE -

year.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group repaid the other
borrowings in advance in view of the sufficient working capital of
the Group. No penalty is charged by the lender on early settlement
of other borrowings by the Group.

RERERREZRERAT / —T=

BE_Z_NEF-_A=1+—HLFE"
RAGKEZEESRRE  AREIERNER
Hp R - ERALRRAKBIRAI4)
HfESRKEE &

IﬂH+ FNE F%‘%‘r
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

In prior years, Shundong Port, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued a series of preferred shares
(“Preferred Shares”) to two independent third parties. They are
accounted for as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The key terms of the Preferred Shares are summarised as follows:

Dividend rights

The holders of the Preferred Shares are entitled to special dividend
based on 8% of the issuance price when the following conditions
are satisfied in a particular year: (i) Shundong Port made a
distributable profit which is more than the special dividend for the
year; and (ii) Shundong Port has accumulated distributable profit
which is more than the special dividend for the year. Both profit
for the year and accumulated distributable profit are determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards.
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30. PREFERRED SHARES 30. BEK
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF PR =6s
il T
Preferred shares 1B h% 379,015 378,234

RBEFE  ARREEIFEZENB AR
NIEERE TS [ M 2B E =77 81T — RINE
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30. PREFERRED SHARES (continued)

Liquidation preferences

0]

(ii)

If the assets and funds available for distribution are less
than the total contributions from preferred shareholders
and ordinary shareholders of Shundong Port, the entire
assets and funds legally available for distribution shall be
distributed ratably among the preferred shareholders and
ordinary shareholders in proportion to the contribution
amount each such holder contributed to Shundong Port;
and

If the assets and funds available for distribution are in excess
as compared to the total contributions from preferred
shareholders and ordinary shareholders of Shundong Port,
the distributions to preferred shareholders would be limited
to the contributions made by the preferred shareholders to
Shundong Port, plus the amount of dividends entitled by
the preferred shareholders but not yet paid. The remaining
assets and funds shall be distributed ratably among holders
of ordinary shares of Shundong Port.

Other features

The Preferred Shares do not have any redemption feature or
conversion feature.

The Group applied the discounted cash flow method to determine
the underlying equity value of Shundong Port to determine the
fair value of the Preferred Shares. The Directors considered that
fair value changes of the Preferred Shares that are attributable to
changes of credit risk of these instruments are not material. The
details of the fair value measurement of Preferred Shares are set out

in note 7.

30. BER@@®

BREEHE

0] WA DR EERESDRIERE
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31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HE&AE

Present Present
Lease Lease value of lease value of lease
payments payments payments payments
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEMR HERR | HEARZEE | BERHRE
—ECME ZZ-=F —E-MmE —EZ=F
TET BT TER TEL
Within one year —FR 2,890 1,190 2,721 1,160
After one year but within two years ~ —FEEMFR 1277 132 1,237 107
After two years but within five years  BEEERER 375 39 267 294
After five years hF#% 4,631 5,020 1,556 1,732
6,283 5,548 3,060 2,133
9,173 6,738 5,787 3,293

Less: Future finance charges A ARBEER (3,386) (3,445)

Present value of lease liabilities HEBBE HE 5,787 3,293

Less: Amount due for settlement B TZEARE SR
within 12 months (shown FE (B RR
under current liabilities) REEREET) (2.727) (1,160)
Amount due for settlement +ZAAREBEETE

after 12 months 3,060 2,133
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

PROMISSORY NOTES 32. AAEE
Promissory Promissory Promissory Promissory
Note A-i Note A-iii Note A-iv Note B Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAZBAT  RARBAGT RZEBAAV REEEB @t
THT THT Fin ThL THET
At 1 April 2022 W-Z-—%MA—H 43,297 45319 37,397 11,256 137,269
Repayment during the year FREH - = = (6,000) (6,000)
Fair value change (note 9(b) ATEZE (HFEb) = 524 = = 524
Effective interest expenses (note 1) BIRF 8HX (M 11) 754 - 801 32 1877
Interest paid during the year FREFFE - - - (440) (440)
Derecognition upon reission of BRI A A8 R 1 RERR (3R 22)
contracts (note 22) (44,034) (45,831) (38,183) - (128,048)
Exchange difference EHES (17) (12) (15) - (44)
At 31 March 2023 WZE-=#=ZA=+-H - - - 5138 5138
At1 April 2023 W-E-ZEmA—A - - - 5,138 5,138
Repayment during the year EREH - - = (5,000) (5,000)
Effective interest expenses (note 1) ERFEHRE (1) - - - 84 84
Interest paid during the year EREFFE - - - (222) (222)
At31 March 2024 R-B-mE=F=+-A - - - - -
Represented by: R&:
At 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=A=1-R
— Current portion -5 - - - - -
At 31 March 2023 RZZ-=%=A=t—-H
~ Current portion - HEHA - - - 5,138 5,138

RREBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZWNEFR
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32. PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

Promissory Note A

The purpose for issuance of the Promissory Note A was related
to the acquisition of equity instruments at FVOCI, for a nominal
consideration of RMB224,000,000 which was satisfied by the
Company'’s issue of Promissory Note A to vendor (note 22).

The Promissory Note A can be early redeemed by the Company at
all or part of the outstanding principal amount of the Promissory
Note A.

The Promissory Note A comprised of two parts, (i) the unconditional
promissory note with nominal value of RMB149,000,000
(approximately HK$165,554,000) carrying interest of 5% per
annum and maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory
Note A-i"”); and (ii) the conditional promissory note with nominal
value of RMB75,000,000 (approximately HK$83,333,000) carrying
interest of 5% per annum and maturing on 18 December 2022 (the
“Promissory Note A-ii”). Conditions for the Promissory Note A-ii
included release of financial guarantee provided by Tai‘an Wanyue
on facility of a third party and full recoverability from certain debtors
of Tai'an Wanyue.

The Promissory Note A-i was early redeemed by the Company
partially amounted to approximately HK$28,333,000 resulting in
a loss on early redemption of approximately HK$1,788,000 during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.
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AAEE ®)
AAEEA

BITEEERAZ B R EIER A FEE
AEMEEMBANER T EBRE &=
KRAE B AR ¥ 224,000,0007T * AA QA
MEFBTERLEBEANSREE (Wi
22)

ARB T IAERLFIBAZFRE D AR AR
CRIEABEO AN REA -

EHEBABRERDBY  ((EERAREK
149,000,000 7T (#7 165,554,000 7 JT) A £
BHEARLEE BRFEFES%FTE - BR
T F+ A+ NBEIS(EEEE
A-i]): R(NEE A AR 75,000,0007T
(#983,333,000/8 7T) 0Y B 1 7 2% -
BERNER5RE AR T - —F+=
A+NBEREB(HFEEEBRA]D - AHE
BAINGHERERRRLZEETRE=F
BEREOMBEREBHNERZEE
K E T IEURER -

HE-_Z2-_—F=ZA=+—HL+AHHE
A ARARIRAIER I D &N ZIEAL
28,333,000/8 7T  BEUIZAIIE R 2 BELD
1,788,000/8 7T °
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PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)
Promissory Note A (Continued)

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, condition relating
to full recoverability from certain debtors of Tai‘an Wanyue had
been fulfilled and the Company spun off the Promissory Note A-ii
on 28 August 2020 into (i) the conditional promissory note with
nominal value of RMB43,000,000 maturing on 18 December 2022
(the “Promissory Note A-iii”) and (ii) the unconditional promissory
note with nominal value of RMB32,000,000 carrying interest of 5%
per annum and maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory
Note A-iv").

At issue date, the fair value of the Promissory Note A, Promissory
Note A-iii and Promissory Note A-iv is determined at date of
issuance with reference to valuation performed by APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Promissory Note A-i,
A-iii and A-iv were surrendered by the holder upon the recission of
relevant contracts, of which the details are set out in note 22.

Promissory Note B

The purpose for issuance of the Promissory Note B is for the
settlement of the amount due to an independent third party.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group repaid the
Promissory Note B in the amount of HK$5,000,000 (2023:
HK$6,000,000).

32.

AREE &)
AREEAGE)

HE_T-_—F#=ZA=+—HI+AHE
A rBRBREHXLEEHNE TREKE
REBNGEREER BARRR =S
—EFNAZTN\HBEILERAIDTF
A () EE A AR % 43,000,000 TR —F
T CHE+ A+ NBEHNEEEAN
Z((AHEZEA]D R EEAARE
32,000,0007T * T FEF E5% T ERRZ
T+ A+ N\BEHNEGEGER
2R (EEEERAV]) -

REESTHER - A H RIERA &S E IR A
RAGZEEA Vv AT ERETEESE
DREEFHMERNERATETHNEE

He T - —F=-A=+—HIFE #
BEARBRBRIEEE OB EERREERA
Al R A-iv - BEEFEIBEA M E22

AHEEB

BIALREBEBN BN REERNEBELSE
=TFRIE .

He_T-_NF=-A=+—HIL&E"
AREE 83 5,000,0008 L (T - =4
6,000,000 7 7T) Y7 5 245 B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(p), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unused
tax losses of approximately HK$85,429,000 as at 31 March 2024
(2023: HK$139,556,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the tax losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The unused tax losses
of approximately HK$22,420,000 (2023: HK$85,954,000) will be
expired by 2029 (2023: 2028) under current tax legislation, and
the remaining unused tax losses of approximately HK$63,009,000
(2023: HK$53,602,000) will be carried forward indefinitely. The
unused tax losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by
respective authorities.
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33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 33. EZEHIEAR

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the TRARNSEERNEZRELERIEAE
Group.

Fair value

adjustment

on investment

properties

HK$'000

REW*

AP ERAE

FHET

At 1 April 2022 R-E-_—_FMWA—H 181,494

Charged to profit or loss (note 12) =k (HiE12) 26,889

Exchange difference W Z R (13,494)

At 31 March 2023 RZEB_=F=R=+—H 194,889

At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=FmA—H 194,889

Charged to profit or loss (note 12) BEEMR (MEE12) 27,393

Exchange difference MEHZR (10,468)

At 31 March 2024 RZE-_MF=A=+—H 211,814

BHEETAp)MEETHE R _F
ZHOFE=ZA=Z+—8 AEBETERD
85,429,000/ L 2 AEBAMIEFE (ZF
— =% : 139,556,000 7T ) 2 E T £ 18
BE G AREBERER ZEEREHEETE
R IRERBRFEBHEZEHEEE
AEIR S 2 & oK - IRIEIRITRI A D) -
R B) A TEE 18 4922,420,0008 0 (= F
— =% :85,954,0008 L) BR T =N
F(ZZEZ=F 2 )\®)mEH m
#R T R B) A TR T8 518 49 63,009,000 7 7T (=
T — =4 : 53,602,000 7T) 5 R HA 45
o AEBHARBABIEE RS REEH
EPIAZE -
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SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRA
Number
of shares Amount
‘000 HK$'000
BB EE S5
T AT
Authorised: JEIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE.IBITHEBER
at 1 April 2022 RZE-__FIWMA—H 15,000,000 1,500,000
Share consolidation (note a(i)) &t & o (T aEad) (13,500,000) =
Share sub-division (note afiii)) B 1 4% 48 (B 3% adiii)) 148,500,000 =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE.01EILH LB
at 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and R-E-_=F=fF=+—8"
31 March 2024 —EC=FMA-BAE=ZE
—PFE=ZA=+—H 150,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: EERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREBE.IBITHEBER
at 1 April 2022 RZE-__FIMA—H 7,205,629 720,563
Share consolidation (note a(i)) &t & o (T aEad) (6,485,066) -
Share reduction (note a(ii)) R 1 Bl (Bt 3 adii) - (713,357)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE.01EILH LB
at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZTEZ=F=ZA=+—HK
—E-=FA—H 720,563 7,206
Issue of new shares (note b) BT (H5ED) 360,000 3,600
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE.01E LW LB
at 31 March 2024 R-E-NFE=F=+—H 1,080,563 10,806
Notes: MeE
(a) On 13 September 2022, special resolutions were passed at a special (a) RZZE-_—_FHLA+=8 REEREH

general meeting as follows:

(i) To consolidate every 10 issued and unissued existing
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.1 each (the
“Existing Share”) in the share capital of the Company
into 1 consolidated share of par value of HK$1.00 each
(the "Consolidated Share” and collectively the “Share

Consolidation”).

RE FBBIATERIRES -

(i) 1 AR B A R & 10 B & K E
BB THEBITRARET
REEBER (THEERN]) &6
BB EREE100ETHE
Pty (T& 6t D ([AxD &
BFl) o
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a

(b)

(Continued)

(ii) To reduce the share capital of the Company through a
cancellation of (a) any fractional Consolidated Share in the
share capital of the Company that may arise as a result of
the Share Consolidation in order to round down the total
number of Consolidated Shares to a whole number; and
(b) the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.99 on each of the issued Consolidated Share such
that the par value of each issued Consolidated Share shall
be reduced from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting
a new share of par value of HK$0.01 each (the “New
Share” and collectively the “Capital Reduction”).

The credit of approximately HK$713,357,000 arising from
the Capital Reduction will be applied towards offsetting
the accumulated losses of the Company and the balance of
any such credit remaining after offsetting the accumulated
losses of the Company be transferred to a distributable
reserve account (i.e. the Capital Reserve) of the Company
which may be applied by the Company in any manner as
permitted under the applicable laws and the Memorandum
and Articles.

(iii) To sub-divide each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Share into 100 New Share, so that the par
value of each unissued Consolidated Share shall be reduced
from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01 each (the “Share Sub-
division”).

The Share Consolidation was completed and effective on 15
September 2022. The Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division
were completed and effective on 19 December 2022.

On 30 August 2023, 360,000,000 shares were duly allotted and
issued by the Company to Cosmic Shine International Limited
(the "Subscriber”) at the price of HK$0.416 per share for a total
consideration of approximately HK$149,760,000, according to
the subscription agreement entered on 28 April 2023 and under
the specific mandate obtained from the independent shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 18
August 2023. The Subscriber effectively held 53.25% of issued
share capital of the Company and is legally and beneficially owned
as to 50% by Mr. Cao Sheng and 20% by Mr. Liu Yong, who are
the executive Directors.
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35. URGBABERZAR

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Old Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme, which was
adopted by the shareholders on 24 June 2013 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the date
of adoption. Eligible participants of the Old Share Option
Scheme include the Directors, independent non-executive
Directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group and any non-
controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on
24 June 2013, the general scheme limit of the Old Share
Option Scheme is set to 1,746,849,000 shares, which have
been adjusted to 174,685,000 shares pursuant to the share
consolidation in 2014, representing 10% of the Company'’s
issued share capital on the date of meeting, with the
passing of ordinary resolution, which allows the Company
to grant further options carrying the rights to subscribe for
a maximum of 174,685,000 shares. The general scheme
limit is further adjusted to 17,468,500 shares after the
completion of share consolidation on 15 September 2022,
which allows the Company to grant further options carrying
the rights to subscribe for a maximum of 17,468,500
shares. This is also the maximum unexercised share options
currently permits to be granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme at any time.

Maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Old Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1%, of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

(a)

BRRESTE

RARHBRER=-ZT—=FA
M RRA RS (8
BRERE) - BRIERTTHURSRE
71 BAIEBRES S bR A H
REI0OFA—BEBER EBKRE
AEZARERSEERRES B
VIFRTER AEEZEMES -
AEBzERARBHER K&
BrEE RASBIRMHTE
BREMRMEZEMALRE
B8 K AR R B A B 2 AE ] FEIE AR
PRIR

BER_ZT—=Z4A=-+1
HEBZRERFNRE  EB
B8 2 —REIRBEDR
TE A 1,746,849,000 % % 1 (2 1R
BZE—NUEFRNDEHFARE
174,685,000 f& J& 1) (fh K& 17
HEAARQAIE#HITRAZ10%) -
BEELBAZEERBE AQF
AE—FTREMBEEZAIRE
174,685,000 % J 1 e 2 RE AR % -
— R ERER TN A
THABMKRDEHTEXEE—F
517,468,500 k15 - AR
AA#E—SEENESZRZIRE
17,468,500 % f% 170 #E F| 2 B AR AE ©
B IR A B R AR AR R E R
RERTEI AR 2 B AR 1T 0 B AR A
ZE=mHE -

EEA+ZEAHER - RIFEK
BAURMERREAEANZERAE
RBREB/TZHRBRNBETF
FBIBLAS X B A (AT B F] 2 B 7T AR D
Z1% o fi e — F RN BALRE
ZBhE - AAERRAE LRE
B ER AL/
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35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors. In addition,
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non- executive Director, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the Director, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Old Share Option Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and

(0) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There has been no share option granted or exercised since
the Old Share Option Scheme was adopted in June 2013.
As at 31 March 2023, the Group has no outstanding share
option. The Old Share Option Scheme was expired in June
2023.
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35. URGBpAEBRZAR@

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

New Share Option Scheme

Following the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme in
June 2023, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from the date of adoption. Eligible participants
of the New Share Option Scheme include the Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, other employees of
the Group, and also the directors or employees of holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies
of the Company by considering their participation and
contribution to the development of the Group and/or the
extent of benefits and synergies brought to the Group.

Pursuant to the annual general meeting passed on 29
September 2023, the general scheme limit of the New Share
Option Scheme is set to 108,056,289 shares, representing
10% of the Company’s issued share capital on the date
of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution, which
allows the Company to grant further options carrying
the rights to subscribe for a maximum of 108,056,289
shares. This is also the maximum unexercised share options
currently permits to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme at any time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors. In addition,
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non- executive Director, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time, are subject to (i) dispatching a circular
in advance which contains the details of the grant; and (ii)
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

(b)

MBREE

REBBREFER _T_=F7A
JERR - ARBRA— IR ERAE
sHEI(THBARMER R  BRIESTT
HUBSKIER] - B RIFT B AR 8l
RMBMEFI0OFA—BEBR
HEBRE Bz AER2EERR
EX BUFNTES AKEZ
HEipR B A RARRB ZERAF -
RIRMBERARRMBE R ZEER
BE EFCERMEHAEES
Rz2EREBKLRAEEHR
5 RN Ko 15 Rl M B AR . o

BER-_Z-_=FALA=-1Th
H@BsRRBEFRE  HER
BETElz —METEIRECRE R
108,056,289 ik I 17 ({h K& £ 17
HERARRIEEITRAZ10%) -
BEELBARELERGE £A2QF
E—SREMNEZZATRME
108,056,289 & I {7 1 7 2 B A 8 o
b IR B B BT (] B AR 455 B %
RERT A RF I 2 1 R 1T B AR A
ZEmEE -

BYARBES  TBITRABRS
IERRABWEZEABBEAZE
Mot AELXRGEIIFNTES
ZHUHE o BEHN BT EERRIE
VIHBTEFIWEZEMABE
AZ BB - R AN A R R A
BRECEITRMN 201%%E @ RIZA
W EEFE-—OHHERHFBNR
B R (i) ERERRKE LEUS
PSR -
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35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within a period as specified in the offer letter, upon
payment of a non-refundable consideration as specified in
the offer letter. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Director, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and

(0) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There has been no share option granted or exercised since
the New Share Option Scheme was adopted in September
2023. As at 31 March 2024, the Group has no outstanding
share option.
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36.
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

%’Aﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ)‘ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%

(a) ZADFHBARE

Company
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EE == =4s
TExT FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 1,065 15
Interests in subsidiaries i SN EENGIE o Fs 665,565 600,428
666,630 600,443
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ Faf} 518 ~ #2 & &
Hofh pE W ke 3,706 1,923
Financial assets at FVTPL BRFEGAEBRZ
WK EE 10,630 12,937
Cash and bank balances B MIRITET 25,557 1,059
39,893 15,919
Current liabilities REBAEE
Other payables and accruals H M E N SR8 I FEET RUR 6,695 15,212
Amount due to a subsidiary e — 1B B A B3R - 273
Promissory notes AR EE - 5,138
6,695 20,623
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(8RK)FE 33,198 (4,704)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERE 699,828 595,739
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other borrowings E g — 10,652
Net assets HEE 699,828 585,087
Capital and reserves BEAXRFHE
Share capital A& AR 10,806 7,206
Reserves G 689,022 577,881
Total equity B 699,828 585,087
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(Continued)

36. ARRUBMRAKRREEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY @)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AEQTHESE
Share Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E ERGE RitER @t
THET FHET T FAT
At 1 April 2022 R-E--“FNA—A 3,087,641 157,960 (3,338,849) (93,248)
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREZARTEER
expenses for the year - - (42,228) (42,228)
Share premium reduction (note 37() A& (3 & (& &3 (Bt 5 37(1)) (3,087,641) - 3,087,641 -
Share reorganisation (note 34(a)) fRin B4 (K 34(@) - 451,697 261,660 713,357
At 31 March 2023 RWZZZ=%=fA=+-H - 609,657 (31,776) 577,881
At 1 April 2023 RZZZ=FMA—H - 609,657 (31,776) 577,881
Loss and total comprehensive EABERZER LR
expenses for the year - - (32,061) (32,061)
Issue of new shares (note 34(b) BATHTR (B 3E34(0) 146,160 - - 146,160
Transaction costs incurred in connection  FEE{TRNEL 2 X HHA
with the issue of shares (2,958) - - (2,958)
At 31 March 2024 RZZE-mE=A=+—H 143,202 609,657 (63,837) 689,022
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

37. RESERVES

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium mainly arose from:

- the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor;

- the premium arising from the capitalisation issue in
the previous years;

- issue of shares of the Company at a premium net of
transaction costs associated with the issue of shares;
and

- amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.

On 13 September 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed
at an extraordinary general meeting on the reduction of the
share premium account of the Company to nil and to apply
such amount towards offsetting the accumulated losses of
the Company (the “Share Premium Reduction”).

The Share Premium Reduction was completed and effective
on 15 September 2022.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve mainly arose from the Company’s capital

reorganisation in 2005 and represented the reduction of
share capital of the Company.

37. f##E

BEEEREDN

()

(i)

K17 EE
i mEEXEELR :

= BRERAEER-_TZT—F
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2 fE
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B tn 1R H AR ) BT
R

- A AT i i P % 34 4 m)
P 18 75 By {8 EL b 4 25 0
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WA ERNEHEARFNE
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

37. RESERVES (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency
(i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in exchange reserve. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of
foreign currencies set out in note 4(s).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
the fair value changes arising from the reclassification
of Group’s owner-occupied properties to investment
properties.

FVOCI reserve

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve
mainly arose from fair value change on equity instrument at
FVOCI during the reporting period.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly arose from the adjustment made to
the amount of controlling and non-controlling interests
arising from the capital injection by non-controlling interests
resulting in a change in the Group’s ownership interests in
non-wholly-owned subsidiary.
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38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
bank borrowings (note 28), other borrowings (note 29), preferred
shares (note 30) and promissory notes (note 32) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained earnings/accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the capital. The Directors balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends, issuance of new shares
and share buy-backs as well as the raising of new debts, if required.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessor

The investment properties held by the Group for rental purposes
have committed leases for the next 4.33 years (2023: 0.13 year).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on the lease are as follows:

38.

39.

EXERER

AEFEEEEERN  UHEAAEEANER
BRENFERLE  RNEABLERRK
AN B R YR R BECR [B] 3R o 7N 55 [ B RE SR g
BEFEMER -

AEEEARBERREER  ERERTE
R (Mi5E28) - E Ak (HRE29) - B%
B (MEEE30) AR RE (H5E32) - MR
AREEBEANEERED  HhEE2 %7
B FERRBRA,REEE -
EETHRAERRE - (FAREHNZ—
B BFHEEARARBAERERZ
Rk - EFFBIKMNRE - BTN K
Bt B A R B R B (A 78) RFEE
ERMNEARRRE -

REBORH
ERHEA

AEENAEENEENREME ZEAE
TAEAAAREA33E(ZT_=F:0.134F) -

A2 EWARMIRBEENHAT

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-MmEF —E=F

FET FAT

Within one year —FR" 114,450 21,290
After one year but within two years —FREMFRA 114,450 -
After two years but within five years MERBRFA 267,049 -
495,949 21,290
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40.

41.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

40. EAREIE

AEBRBEMRZERALELT

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-OEF —E=%F
THET FHT
Capital commitments in respect of: AT & I8 2 8 AAFHE -
— construction of oil and liquefied —fin KRR ES
chemical terminal LT RIEEER 8,966 113,199
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BEALRS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has no other transaction with its related parties.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 17, is
as follows:

Brira ISR A T PRk A BE A

TR 5 RAERIN -

T35 -

FTEEBABZHM

REEYEELMBEA

AEBTEEEABZEHM (BIEME 7

PABEZEBNESHE)MT

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-IF ZE=F

F#ExT FHT

Short-term benefits = HARE A 3,774 3,702
Post-employment benefits BERL 2R A 94 71
3,868 3,773

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined
by the board of Directors (upon the recommendation of the
remuneration committee) having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results, asset or liabilities of the Group as at 31 March
2024:

2. RBIBARZRE

(@) UTHREHIN-_Z-_WFE=A
T+ HEERATEFEAEFH
24 EENBENNBRRFE:

Particulars of
Place of issued share
incorporation/ capital and
establishment and registered Proportion of
Name of the companies g)er;%kgn/ - ca%;tal ownership interest Principal activities
LA BRIRAR
RAER RIREELE AREARE EHRERLA TERE
Held by the
The Group's Held by the Company's
effective interest Compan subsidiaries
AEERRER BELTRE RALAWELIRA
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
(2023: HK$1) (2023:100%) (2023 (2023 100%)
BHEERAT B L 100% - 100% RESR
(-E-cf: EIcE (CE-ZE:-)  (ZRZZE100%)
1 %TE 00%/
Mission Achiever Limited Samoa Us$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
(2023: Uss1) (2023:100%) (2023: - (2023: 100%) )
Mission Actiever Limited BED S 100% / - 0% REEK
(ZF==F: ot (ZF2=F:) (F2=F:
1%7) 100%) 100%)
Mid-Ocean Hong Kong Investrent Hong Kong HK$ 100% - 100% Investment holding
Lmted( Mid-Ocean”) (2023:100%) (2023:4 (2023:100%) )
PEEEREBRAA (A B 100% - 100% REER
(CE2zf: (CR2zf:) (Z8-z%:
100%) 100%)
Shundong Port* The PRC RMBA03,040,036* 55.17% - 55.17% Leasing of oil and liquefied
(2023: RMB403,040,036) (2023: 55.17%) (2023:-) (2023:55.17%) chemical terminal, the
PRC
B fE ARI403,040,036 ¢ 55.17% - 55.17% BEhnRARI IR
(CE_=F: (CE_=%: (CF-z%:) (Z3zzE: pRRele]
ARE403,040,0367T) 55.17%) 55.17%)
Cheerful Dragon Limited BvI Uss1 100% 100% - Investment holding
(2023: Us$1) (2023:100%) (2023 100%) (2023.4) )
fBERRAT £BETHE o ﬁi B jOO% B 100% - RERR
(CE2=E: (z S:ﬁ (z Z:ﬁ (CE-2%:)
127 100%) 100%)
* This company is a sino-foreign owned enterprise * WRBBERBEKILHRINEG
established in the PRC. B o
# It included paid-up capital of preferred shares of # RZEZWFRZFZ=F=

RMB180,000,000, and together with the excess paid-up
capital of RMB90,000,000, it formed the principal amount
of preferred shares of RMB270,000,000 at 31 March 2024
and 2023 (see note 30).

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

A=+—8" ﬁm;ﬂ%ﬂ&z
ZR A AR ¥ 180,000,000
TERBEHARZRAARE
90,000,000 T * H # i (& 5L f&
A% % A R ¥ 270,000,000 70
(RKI5E30) ©

P A M8 A R R B3 TT (A
ERE S

RREBREZRERAR / —T ==/ ZWNEFR

181



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

42,
(b)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

42. RBRABZEE @)

Particulars of the wholly-owned entities de-consolidated (b) B Z-ZERTBEHEAAEZR
since 2010 are as follows: BEEREFBOT
Place of Particulars of
establishment and registered Proportion of
Name of the companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
ARER RIREELY AftERsE BERERLA TEEH
Held by the
The Group's Held by the Company's
effective interest Company subsidiaries
ASHERESR BALERE ARNANEAREE
QHFSMI {note 2(a))* The PRC HK$40,000,000 100% - 100% Exploration of mine, the PRC
(2023: (2023:100%) (2023.-) (2023 100%)
HK$40,000,000)
EERE (haa)r b 40,000,00077C 100% - 100% BEHR 18
(cE3-=%: (z3-zf: (Z3z=%:) (Z3==%:
40,000,000%77) 100%) 100%)
IMFSMI (note 2(a))* The PRC HK$30,000,000 100% - 100% Not yet commenced business
(2023 HK$30,000,000) (2023:100%) (2023.-) (2023: 100%)
RELHE (i 2a)" G 300000007 100% - 100% HARGEZEH
(cE-z%: (Z3z=%: (ZFz=%:) (ZBz=E:
30,000,000%77) 100%) 100%)
# These companies are wholly-owned foreign enterprises # ZERBARF KNG
established in the PRC. BEME-
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42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(9]

The following table lists out the information of Shundong
Port that have material NCI to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-

company elimination.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= by E S B kS

For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT - UF=A=+—HILFE

42. RABRARZEE @)

TRINEBEHAEEBERNIE
EREENIRREHEEN - BBE
FERIE A RINH I 2 ATR S5 -

Name Shundong Port
=r JIE 3R 7 7%
2024 2023
—E_MF —E-=F
Principal place of business/ FEEEMD PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
country of establishment B S PRTE BT K HEHE B,
% of ownership interests/ R ERFTEN

voting rights at board of
directors held by NCI

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets attributable to NCI

mEEER NEEGZ

BEE%

BEERE

FEREDEEEEFE

44.83%/33.33%

44.83%/33.33%

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
1,511,955 1,571,135
606,823 250,147
(775,112) (547,437)
(592,748) (595,825)
750,918 678,020
336,712 304,025
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 E—ZT —F=A=+—HILFE

42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. RBLRRZRE @
(c) (Continued) (o) @&
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-WF —F-=%F
THERT F&T
Revenue Wz 242,234 366,757
Profit for the year F M5 ) 96,447 74,498
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 2 T Ut A 4258 72,987 44,499
Profit attributable to NCI FE 15 R 1R 2 B (5 A 43,247 36,955
Total comprehensive income attributable  JE %2 A% 8 % & 1 2 WA 4258
to NCI 32,687 20,611
Net cash inflow from operating activities & & /EB TSR SR AFE 388,134 118,784
Net cash outflow from investing activities & & /& B AT1SIH € R HFRE (17.866) (25,448)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing B EEBAEERE SR Gid)
activities EHR 126,026 (55,333)
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42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries not constituting a (d)

discontinued operation

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
company which is an independent third party to the
Group (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group
had conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser had
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire equity interest
of Precious New Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Precious New Group”), for a consideration of
HK$1,600,000. The disposal was completed on 12 January

2023.

The net assets of the abovementioned the Precious New

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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—B+=B%K -

42. RABRARZEE @)

HEREAR (LEBKE
RIEEERT)

BE-_ZE-_=F=A=+—HItHF
B ARABE—FRR(AXER
MWBLZE=F)EFDILEE
W Bt AEESRGERED
EMEFBRGERAEREERAER
RAIRENBAR (BEIEEE
E ) # 2 EBAAE - (B & 1,600,000
B R ETHEERZZEZ=F

bABEREERN L E R SHEEE

Group at the disposal date were as follows: W
Precious
New Group
ERKE
HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control ~ kE#ZGlEZ EERBBEDN
was lost:
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,651
Investment in an associate REE R B NIRE -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR RIE ~ ' R H A E Y IE 2,260
Loan receivable U E X 1,658
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHERT 8
Other payables H {th 5108 (3,355)
Lease liabilities HEaE (2,892)
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE 330
Reclassification of cumulative exchange reserve REERENHDBRFIELRE
upon disposal (685)
Gain on disposal o U e 1,955
Total consideration RELRE 1,600
Satisfied by: BT
Cash B 1,600
Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash FRLEEREEE 2 Re R
equivalents in respect of disposal of Precious ReFEBERAFEIN
New Group:
Cash consideration BENRE 1,600
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances B BHEReRBESSE
disposed of T8 B &8k (8)
1,592
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42. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(e) Change in ownership interest in a
subsidiary

For the year ended 31 March 2023

The Group acquired additional 8.5% interest in Shundong
Port at a consideration of RMB86,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$99,846,000). The interest of Shundong
Port attributable to the Company increased from 46.67% to
55.17% thereafter.

An amount of approximately HK$45,340,000 (being
the difference between the consideration paid and the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets
of Shundong Port) has been debited to the other reserve.
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43. ZRERETREBRMTE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or the future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

METBHRELENEEED

TERIIASERARDIHREZEDY
2% - KARA
EBNEEDRLRERAKRLRES
85 AAEEREREED I EARS R

A5 BRRS LIRS

consolidated cash flows from financing activities. EzB8E-
Total
liabilities
from
Bank Other Lease  Promissory Preferred financing
borrowings  borrowings liabilities notes shares activities
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE
HEEHZ
S E EER  HERE  ANEE Bk BeE
T T FiEn TR Tk i
At 1 April 2022 R-2--£mA-A 298,677 12,480 11,273 137,269 387,539 847,238
Changes in financing cash flows RERERERD (115,397) (2,544) (3713 (6,440) - (128,094)
Non-cash changes 54488
Modification of lease BYEE - - (1,102) - - (1,102)
Fair value loss of promissory notes FARELTEEE - - - 524 - 524
Fair value loss of preferred shares BERATESE - - - - 19,453 19,453
Interest expenses (note 11) flg iz () 13,554 716 308 1877 - 16,455
Derecognition upon recission of contracts RERANEE R (Wi 2)

(note 22) - - - (128,048) - (128,048)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(c)) mENBAR (HiEad) - - (2,892) - - (2892)
Exchange difference ERER (22,000 - (581) (44) (28759) (51,383)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZZEZA=+-H 174,834 10,652 3293 5138 378234 572,15
At 1 April 2023 R-Z-ZEmA-A 174,834 10,652 3293 5,138 378,234 572,151
Changes in financing cash flows HERERERD (13,660) (11,119) (2,79) (5222) - (32,797)
Non-cash changes 5488
Addition of lease liabiltes TEREBR - - 5,228 - - 528
Fair value loss of preferred shares BERATEES - - - - 20,780 20,780
Interest expenses (note 11) flaEz () 8,191 467 179 84 - 8921
Exchange difference EREE (9,09) - (117) - (19,999) (29.212)
At31 March 2024 RZE-mE=A=+-H 160,269 - 5,187 - 379,015 545,071
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44.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 17 June 2024, the Company, Mr. Gu Siyu (the “Vendor”)
and Prosperous Splendor Global Limited (the “Target Company”)
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase,
and the Vendor agreed to sell, 40% of the issued share capital
(and shareholder’s loan, if any) of the Target Company (collectively
the “Acquired Interest”) for a consideration of RMB200,000,000,
which shall be satisfied as to RMB120,000,000 in cash and
RMB80,000,000 by the issue of three tranches of promissory notes
which shall vest upon the satisfaction of the profit guarantees
during three profit measurement periods.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Vendor granted to the
Company a put option (the “Put Option”) such that if the actual
profit of the Target Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ending 31 March 2027 is less than 70% of the third guaranteed
profit, the Company may exercise the Put Option at its discretion
during the put option period to require the Vendor to purchase
from the Company the Acquired Interest at the put option price,
which is equivalent to the aggregate acquisition costs actually paid
by the Company for the Acquired Interest (including all interest paid
on the promissory notes, if any).

Further details of the Acquisition Agreement, the Acquired Interest
and the Put Option were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 June 2024.
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